Torres Rojas, Genara

15270

From: bsnyder@brc.org

Sent: Tuesday, September 02, 2014 3:53 PM

To: Duffy, Daniel; American, Heavyn-Leigh

Cc: Torres Rojas, Genara; Van Duyne, Sheree
Subject: Freedom of Information Online Request Form
Information:

First Name: Brittany

Last Name: Snyder

Company: BRC

Mailing Address 1: 131 West 25th Street, 12th Floor
Mailing Address 2:

City: New York

State: NY

Zip Code: 10001

Email Address: bsnyder@brc.org
Phone: 212-803-5712

Required copies of the records: Yes

List of specific record(s):

Regarding RFP 35907, I respectfully request a copy of the winning proposal selected to provide homeless

outreach and referral services at Port Authority Bus Terminal and Lincoln Tunnel.



THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

FOI Administrator

November 14, 2014

Ms. Brittany Snyder

BRC

131 West 25th Street, 12th Floor
New York, NY 10001

Re: Freedom of Information Reference No. 15270
Dear Ms. Snyder:

This is in response to your September 2, 2014 request, which has been processed under the Port
Authority’s Freedom of Information Code (the “Code”), for a "copy of the winning proposal
selected to provide homeless outreach and referral services at Port Authority Bus Terminal and
Lincoln Tunnel" related to RFP No. 35907.

Material responsive to your request and available under the Code can be found on the Port
Authority’s website at http://www.panynj.gov/corporate-information/foi/15270-C.pdf. Paper
copies of the available records are available upon request.

Certain portions of the material responsive to your request are exempt from disclosure pursuant
to exemption (1) of the Code.

Please refer to the above FOI reference number in any future correspondence relating to your
request.

Very truly yours,

Daniel D. Duffy

FOI Administrator

225 Park Avenue South, 17th FL
New York, NY 10003
2212435 3642 F: 212 435 7555
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For homeless New Yorkers,
the way home.

Frederick Shack, LMSW,
Executive Director

Board of Directors
Ben Braun,
President
Keith Berger,
Vice President
Erik Ipsen,
Treasurer
Steven Sheppard Di Cesare,
Secretary
Gary Belsky,
GeraldW. Blume,
Sonya Covington,
Presidents Emeriti

Samuel R. Aymer
Michael Barnett
Peter R. Brest
Matthew Craner
Brad Handler
Adam Heft
Daniel Katcher
Ethan Kaufman
Trisha Lawson
James Lindsay
Mary S. McCartney
Paul J. Sirkis
Frank Wolf

Leadership Council
Debra Alligood White, Esq,,
Phelps & Phillips, LLP
MaryAnne Gilmartin,
Forest City Ratner Companies
Gary Hoenig,
ESPN Publishing
AJ. Jacobs,
Esquire Magazine &
New York Times
Stephanie Landess,
Volunteer Auctioneer
& Fundraiser
Eric Mangini,
NFL, ESPN Publishing
Victoria Morrison, Esq,,
Edison Properties
Hideki Shirato
Mizuho Corporate Bank (USA)
Paco Underhill
Envirosell
Bifl Weir
ABC Nightline

575 Eighth Avenue, New York, NewYork 10018 ¢ phone: 212.736.7385 « fax: 212.736.1388 » www.urbanpathways.org

January 13, 2014

The Port Authority of NY & NJ
Attn.: BID/RFP Custodian
Procurement Department

2 Montgomery Street — 3™ Floor
Jersey City, NJ 07302

Re:  Homeless Outreach and Referral Services at
the Port Authority Bus Terminal
RFP # 35907

Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed herewith please find Urban Pathways’ proposal in connection with
the Port Authority’s request for proposals for homeless outreach and referral
services (RFP # 35907). Urban Pathways is submitting this proposal as a
single entity.

Urban Pathways has over thirty-eight years of experience serving homeless
men and women. We operate over fifteen programs throughout the New York
City area. Services are delivered through a continuum of care model which
provides consumers with access to numerous programs based on individual
need. Such services include street outreach, drop-in centers, and transitional
and permanent housing. '

Urban Pathways meets all of the prerequisites required for this proposal. We
have over thirty-eight years of experience serving homeless men and women,
and over seventeen years of continuous experience providing outreach and
referral services to the homeless. We have received satisfactory performance
evaluations conducted by outside organizations, and as our attached financial
statements demonstrate, we have earned a gross revenue of at least $250,000 a
year for the last three years.

In addition to the proposal, we have enclosed a list of our Board of Directors
and a copy of Urban Pathways’ Certificate of Incorporation with a revised
amendment due to our name change and a declaration from our Board of
Director’s Secretary stating it is a true copy.




The Port Authority of NY & NJ
January 13, 2014
Page 2

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please contact
me at (212) 736-7385 x226. 1 am authorized to negotiate and execute the
Contract, and am the person to whom the Port Authority can address questions
or issues related to Urban Pathways’ proposal.

Sincerely,

Foo b

Lisa Lombardi, LMSW
Deputy Executive Director

Enclosures
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HOME AND OFFICE ADDRESSES

NAME OFFICE HOME
BEN BRAUN Managing Director, Metgets &
PRESIDENT Acquisitions
ben.braun@baml.com Bank of America Metzill Lynch

T: (646) 855.4413
F: (646) 736.7031

Exemption (1)

*MAIL TO HOME

KEITH BERGER Senior Counsel

VICE PRESIDENT MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc.

kberger(@mafgrp.com 35 East 62nd Street :
New York, NYY 10065 Exemption (1)
T: 212. 357. 5209
F:212.572.8611

*MAIL TO HOME:

BRADLEY HANDLER Managing Ditector, Equity Research

TREASURER Jefferies Group, Inc.

Bphandler@gmail.com

520 Madison Avenue, 10th Floot
New York, New York 10022
T: 212.284. F: (212) 506.5151

Exemption (1)

STEVEN SHEPPARD
DICESARE
SECRETARY

dicesare@hugheshubbard.com

Associate

Hughes Hubbard & Reed, LLLP
One Battety Park Plaza

New York, NY 10004

T (212) 836.6290

F: (212) 422.4726

Exemption (1)

DEBRA ALLIGOOD WHITE

dalligoodwhite@gmail.com

SVP & Genetal Counsel
Planned Patenthood
Federation of Ametrica, Inc.
434 West 33rd Street

New York, NY 10001

T: (212) 452.7115

F: (212) 452.7150

Exemption (1)




MICHAEL BARNETT

michael.barnett(@ozcap.com

Analyst

Och-Ziff Capital Management Group
9 West 57% Street, 39 Floot

New York, NY 10019

T: (212) 719.7347

Exemption (1)

*MAIL TO HOME
GARY BELSKY Consultant
gary.belsky(@gmail.com
Exemption (1)
* MAIL TO HOME
GERALD BLUME General Counsel

gblume(@rockgsp.com

Rockefeller Group Development
Cotporation

1221 Avenue of the Americas
New Yotk, NY 10020

T: (212) 282.2000

F: (212) 282.2124

Exemption (1)

PETER BREST

PRbtest@aol.com

Chief Operating Officer
Mettopolitan Council on Jewish
Poverty

80 Maiden Lane, 21* floor
New York, NY 10038

T: (212) 453.9541

F: (212) 453.9601

Exemption (1)

SONYA COVINGTON

scovington@fcrc.com

Assistant Vice President

Forest City Ratnet Companies
One Metro Tech Centet, 11" Floor
Brooklyn, NY 11201

T: (718) 923.8407

F: (718) 923.8707

Exemption (1)

ADAM HEFT

adam heft@gs.com

Vice President & Associate General
Counsel, Employment Law Group
Goldman Sachs & Co.

One New York Plaza

New Yotk, NY 10004

T: (212) 902.9763

F: (212) 428.1368

ERIK IPSEN

eipsen(@crain.com

Deputy Managing Editot
Crain’s New Yotk Business
711 Thitd Avenue

New York, NY. 10017

T: (212) 210.0211

F: (212) 210.0799

Exemption (1)

Exemption (1)




BILL JACKSON

bjackson@lakewoodlp.com

Partnet

Lakewood Capital Management, LP
650 Madison Ave.

25th Floor

New York, NY 10022

Exemption (1)

DANIEL KATCHER

dkatcher@ngkf.com

Managing Ditector

Newmark Grubb Knight Frank
Global Corpotate Setvices

125 Park Avenue

New Yotk, NY 10017

T: (212) 372.2000

ETHAN KAUFMAN,; Esq.

ekaufman@fragomen.com

Partner,

Fragomen, Del Rey, Bernsen &
Loewy, LLP.

7 Hanover Squate

New Yotk, N'Y 10004-2756

T: (212) 891-7510

Exemption (1)

Exemption (1)

TRISHA LAWSON

trisha Jawson@baml.com

Chief Operating Officer
Global Banking & Markets Business
Controls
Bank of America
One Bryant Patk, 19" Fl.
New Yotk, NY 10036
T: (646) 855.0836

JAMES LINDSAY

james lindsay(@baml.com

Vice President

Bank of America

One Bryant Park
New York, NY 10036
T: (646) 743.0483

F: (415) 633. 2497

Exemption (1)

Exemption (1)

MARY MCCARTNEY

meccattneyma@coned.com

Director, Cotporate Communications
Con Edison, Corpotate Headquartets
4 Trving Place, Room 1650s

New Yotk, NY. 10003

T: (212) 460.4457

F: (212) 719.5961

F: (212) 614.1821

Exemption (1)

EDWARD POTEAT

epoteat@carthagerea.com

Principal,

Hotsford & Poteat Realty
226 West 116th Street
New York, NY 10026

T: (212) 663-8497 ext 110
M: (917) 577-0151

Exemption (1)




PAUL SIRKIS, ESQ.
psitkis@stblaw.com

Senior Associate

Simpson, Thatchet, & Bartlett LLP
425 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10017

T: (212) 455-2651

F: (212) 455-2502

Exemption (1)




575 Eighth Avenue, NewYork, New York 10018 « phone: 212.736.7385 » fax: 212.736.1388 » www.urbanpathways.org
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The Port Authority of NY & NJ

Michael Barnett Attn.: Bid/RFP Custodian
i:“” R Brest Procurement Department
atthew Craner i d
Brad Handler 2 Montgomery Street — 3" Floor
Adam Heft Jersey City, NJ 07302

Daniel Katcher
Ethan Kaufman
Trisha Lawson Re:  Homeless Outreach and Referral Services at

James Lindsay . .
Mary 5. McCartney the Port Authority Bus Terminal

Paul J. Sirkis RFP# 35907
Frank Wolf :
Leadership Council Dear Sir or Madam:
Debra Alligood White, Esq., :
Phelps &Phillips LLP This is a written declaration that the copy of the Certificate of Incorporation
MaryAnne Gifmartin, sed d d h . tru £ th
Forest Clty Ratner Companies and the revised amendment due to our name change is a e copy as of the
Gary Hoenlg, date of the opening of the proposal.
ESPN Publishing .
A.J, Jacobs, .
Esquire Magazine & Smclerely:!
New York Times /)

Stephanie Landess,
Volunteer Auctioneer ‘
& Fundralser {

Eric Mangini, Steven DiCesare
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Victoria Morrison, £5d Secretary, Board of Directors
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TA ‘vc tiiftenle of Tuconrp s poralion I : 00 EXCHANGE PLAGE ar ONOAOWAY, Hew Yﬁfm

S - Oertifieate of Juenepeating
....... . K ’ B | | . . (}f . | Lo . . .' " |
WESTSIDE CLUSTER .OF CENTERS AND SETTLEMENTS, INC.
‘ ~ under section 402 of the Not-for-Profit Cé;pomtz’on Faw -~

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT:

. (_[} T];e.namg ol C]IC“COJ'I)OI'EZ‘I'OHAI‘S WeStSide CIUStGl‘ of Cénters and Settlements, IHC.

© (2) The corporation is 2 corporation as defined is subparsgraphi (a )(5) of 'sact’ian*IOZ-(Dcﬁnitx‘am) of the
Not-forProfi¢ Corporation Law., : R ' R : : '

(%) The purpose or purposes for which the corparation fs formed arc as foilows: To COHdUCt, operate A
maintain an association of settlement houses on- the west 'side from West 145th
‘Street and the Hudson Rives to St Nicholas Avenue, south to Barrow Strect in .-
the City, County and Skate of New York, including but not limited Lo the pregep
,§’ett1emerit houses in that geographical area.- ' _ SR ' '

To promote the welfare of that geographical part of the City by providing
facilities for recreation,club and craft work and similar sexvieces for pre-scho
and elementary age children, adolescents, adults and seénior citizens,

The corporation is formed exclusively for the purposes for which a corporati
may be formed under the Not-For-Profic Corporation Law and not for pecuniary
“ofit or finmancial gain. No part of the assets, income or profit of the corpo
Eion shall be distributable to, or inure to the benefit of, its members, direct
r officers, except to the extent permitted under the’ Not-For-Profit Corporatim
aw, To tncourage, promote, foster and develop programs dependent upon coordin:
ion of and the joint efforts of the membors, ° : : '
-To engage in any and all types of rolated charitable getivities not prohibitdix
¥ law which shdll ‘promote and. foster better cooperation among its members,

To récedive contributions, grants -«nd funding from public and private sources ¢
ay .them over to organizations that are described in Section 501(c) (3) of the II
£ 1954 and are exempt from taxation under-Section 501(a) of the IRC of 1954,

To represent the interests of the members of other social;, economic, political
 legisiative groups or bodies, , R S ‘
To arrange. for and coordinate cooperative purchasing of Supplies by:its member
To aid, assist, develop, promote, fostor and encourage the social welfare of ¢
mbers and of the employees of the members. - K :
To maintain 1liaison with governmental officials to develop ‘their intercst and
vticipation in funding the west side programs that meet the needs of the
munity centers in the arca. o '

The corporation, in furtherance of its corpordte purposes above sot forth, shalt have oIl the Powers et
merated In soction 202 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. subicet tn srw thetemse. . e

AFad Lo Pho e = .
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(4) The c;rpomt:';m shall bo'a 'Typcl A corporation putsuant to section 201 of thg Not-for-Profit Corpo-

C Fation Law¥ o S <L .
(4a) Upon the dissolution of the corporation,; the Board of Directors shail
after paying or making provision for the payment of all the liabilities
- of the corporation, dispose of all the &dssets of the corporation exely.
sively for the purposes of the corporation in such manner, or to suéh
organization or uganizations organized and operated exclusively for
charitable or educational purposes as at the time qualify as an exempt
organization or organizations under Section 501(c) (3) of the IRC of
1954, or the corresponding provision of any future U.S. Internal Revenye
Law, as the Board of Trustees shall determine. . -

i

o ' s . - .
(5) The office of the corporation is to be Jocated in the  City . .
. . o o : (eiiﬁ {bwenj (incorporated vilnge)
of  New York , ~ County of New York State of New York,

", -

(6) The torritory in which the activitios of tho corpor.atx’op are principally to be conducted ix ]
Gity, County and State of New York, - .

.

(' 7) The post officd address to which the S;:crctary of State shall mail a copy of any notice required by law is
' 250 West 65th Street, Hew York, New York,

t

@ I Lhe eace of Tyme 0 pnd ¢

woraarslons el farlh the names and odidresses of he bollia élreclors, Yyne © corsration rawst €8 ferlh e bowtl ikl or awasl-pullle sbfucthee whlh
tach butlness purpste wilf scklere, . : . .
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s : (8) Approval and consents required by law. - ) a
. "t Noa ppro{ra}s and consents ara required by law. '
' Prior to delivery 1o the de partment of stite for filing all approvals and consents required by fagy v
be endorsed upon or aninexed to, this certificate. o - :
f.
; -
! .'
i
I
: 1 ‘e
' I . .
{ .

IN WI TNES& WHEREOQF, the undcrsx'gncd incorporator, or cach of them if there are more than o
~being at least efghicen yoars of age, affirm(s) that the statements made herein are true under the penaltios .
perjurys, o S : o . :

LA

.

.JOSEPH A, MowTCA N
ST " Typemane df Incarpesator ' o '
235 Madison Avenue, New York, New York
: Addoss I e -

’ étguxldft

Tope maae of bsergoralor Staratare

Address

Tyt rame of Jacorporalyr Slonature

bl et TR d L

Addrass



- I, the undemgmd fusucc of the Supreme Court of the .S‘tate af New York
© Judicial District, d5 Hdreby 4 ayprovc tbe foregamg Certifié batd" of Inoorpomtx on of

Dated

v LB rsnen T 0 AR N E 2 R S R A A e v
| AN
:: . .
. l 1
- Geetificate of Tionepmyetim
R ‘ ' of, . - v
WESTSIDE CLUSTER OF CENTERS AND SETTLEMENTS, INC.
under Scction.402 of the Not—fonProfit Corporation Law
Fu’cd Ey
‘ . : -MONICA & FEURY
) ' L R Attorneys—At:~Law A
o - ‘ Oflice and Post Ofiice Address
A I - 1295 Madison Avenue ‘
e, e - New Yorlk, New York 10017
. T : - (212)_ " 089-8834> A0
TR -~ - j L& ) LS A -
: 'f



ST I TASLNL L BN e L
N T

LN
4

S D 0%0002008HsD

‘CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE CERTIFICATE OF -“IRCORPORATION

o gm
.. . "5. CoooE o, 3l

~ ' VESTSIDE CLUSTER OF CENTERS AND SETTLEMENTS, INC.

‘Under Section 803 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation raw - !

ciuster of Centers and Settlements, Inc.

.d‘

, : §BCOHD' The Certlflcate of Inccrporation oﬁ the

'-‘ N

CGrporatlon was leed wath the New York: Department @f state on

A ‘“‘ "o —- - N -

. Occ‘i:ber 26, 197% ]

re

. THIRD: |  The COrporatlon was :mc:orpcrated under §402

¥4

+

the New Ycrk Rot—for-—?rof:.t Corporation Lav. .
.- EOURTH:  The c::rporation is a corporation as defmed
. .Ln subparagraph {a} (5) of SECt.’LOTJ 102 of. the. ﬁct~for~?rofa,t

:TCOrporationmw. e .
‘ EI.EEE '_ The Corporation ls a Type B corporation
undexr Section’ 203. of the th-for»?roflt Ccrporation Law and
will rema:m a Type B corpcratmn.

ﬂm: The maendme.nt of the Certiflcate of

zncorporatzon effected by ﬁhzs certlfxcate of Amendment is to

L. . thange the name of the Corpox:ata'.on t0. URBAN PA'I’HWAYS, INC‘.

¢

- ]
DL L,

Tbere are no nembers entitled to vote.

N

e . wz To acccnpl:.sh the foregoigg,mndmﬁnﬁ,w

e e

Artia le 1, of the Certifica‘ce of Imorporaf:ion, relating to the

3 *{chpoxa‘aim's nane, is hereby =mended to read as fcllaws~




r

Ax

Lo PN
R el Sk — 3 RS F AT P IE h "“‘“““",‘ Aol
. .

¥ ¥l e .

- I!

Tha name’ ‘of the Corporation is mzm PA'I‘HW.AYS, IHC.

. } EIGHT& The fcrego:mg amendment of the Cerﬁificate

of Incorporatwn was authonzed by a magority vote of the

eﬁtire Board of Dzrectors of the Cotporation (7 out of 8 of the

L . i - J
* 2R < -

" . Westside cluster of Centers and Settlements, Inc,

625 Eighth Avenue

Ce Suite 210" B&C'

Rew York, New. York 10018

“e I WITHESS REEREQOF, the unaersigneci, na‘i:ural perscns
ov«ar the age of eighteen years, subscrlbe: this certificate and
affirm the same as true under pen Tty of. per is _1“ day
Of December; 19919

Janike ¥eGulde,/President.

. 4y \/::\-./"‘ . |
o . ‘ . B voep I fttn L7 )
N . : " //?S{t'/ephanie Pinder, Secretary -

-
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RN - The Undersigned has no obaectmn to Judlclal appraval being

granted for the £illing of the Certificate of Amendrernt of the
. Certificate of Incorporau.on of Westside Cluster of Centers and.
) Settl&mERts; InCu ) - ’
.
.+ { Robert abrams .
Attorney General - o
Stnte of Yew York S , S ‘ R

)’m

-

; ‘-Ess.mstzant Atto nay Gene:ral - .

', 1996.
E ) . ‘r}i},, g;-;nw-m:
. S:LEY Rpui s*..!a _ -
I, . oa J‘ustxce. of
) ‘the Supxeme c:mrt of the State of e rX; First, Judlcial
Districk, do hereby approve the exed7 certificate of

Mendment of the Certificate o corporatwn of Westside

same be fllec?. LT e

pated: [uuid?gg}

P

' Cluster of Centers and Setty /eu s, phe. and Consent. that the

IR S et Justlce B the Suprezne Tourk
;-‘ o of the State of New York, -
© Pirs AiﬂldiClal D:Lstrict

. 2150'9? . o K\—/ §““ ll ;h;.
. o - x’l

— . o -
4 Mat
¢ 3 tm-;,.f::y:; ka8
*

. BOBERT ,L-/PJ.LSA Pt S . :
. BTATR Op v ?ogxam = m - g

Af' : 'ﬁé§ZE?<Z£L;¢zxé%¥zﬁf C;bgg ﬁ;;?
éESIETA-W TTORKTY OHEHR /




" Amendment by &ny Justica c:f tbe SUprf
.ma&'a. :

Westeide Cluster of cCenters ang Settlenents, In

[ Cernepr g -\:‘:ﬂz:t.m:x—ra,a'-—.._.'.._'. -

| STATE o? REW YORK )

2 s8.8
COUN‘I‘Y OF NEW YORK) .

Jamce HcGuire, bemg duly swom, deposes and says
that sha is the President of Westside Cluster of Centers’ ami

Settlements, Inc. and stephanie. Pinder is the secretary of£/ .
and that no

previous application’for approval of said Cexti

213 to, beforelrie this -

L st

Hotary Pﬂblxﬁ’ — | o
2150W ’ e . v 1 . : . :;" . A
" ARTOINETTE ABATE
ccﬁ‘ggﬁonex of Deeds .
) tycheg‘%%yNo. gm
Oomn‘?z??gn Exaluss .k.m;e £18. ‘%L

; ~
- . B T e Lo

~

.
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE- CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION -
C OF - | B o
| URBAN PATHWAYS, IHe.

Under Sectn.on 803 of the Not-for~Prof1’c Corporatlon Law

It is hereby certlf.ted that° '
- FIRST: . The ‘name. Of the corporatmn ig Urban
| Pathways,; Inc. | | .

ﬂ ' | SECOND! - The cérﬁi.fi'cate of 'I_n’corpo;ation.af “the.
Corporation was. filed with the New York 'Depa:}tméﬁit of stite on
october 26, 1977. S o

THIRD: A Certificate of .Ame'ndmeﬁt was fiiedu with
the New Y;:)rk Departmént of State on January 2, 1992 which
changed the name of the Corporatlon from Westsmc’ie Cluster of o
Centers and Settlements, TIric. to Urban Pathways, Inc.

B FOURTH. The- Corporatlon was 1ncorpora£ed unde.r §402
) of the New York Not»for-@rof:.t COrporatmn Law. (
| FIFTH. The Corporation is a corporata.on as defined
in subparagraph (a) {5) of Sectlon 102 of the Not—for~Proflt
Corporatlon Law, '

SIXTH:  The Corporation is a Type B corporation
under Séctlon 201 of the Not-for—?roflt Cc:rporatlon Law and |
will remain a Type B cor'poratlon.«

- SEVENTH: The amendment of the certaficate of
Incorpoxfatidn effected by this Certlflcate oflAmendment is to
c¢hange the stat;aci purposes of the Corporafion‘



- EIGHTH: To accomplish the foregoing amendment,
aArticle 3 of thé’ Cértificate of ‘I.ncoi:'pération ' rela;,ting'to the

Corporation’s purposes,-is h_ereby anie:édgéd-to_ read a,;s foll,cwé:

_, To engage in such exclusively charitable or
educational activitiés of any kind or nature .
- whatsoever as shall qualify the Corporation for
exeription from taxation under Séction 501(a) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1886 (the "Code'),
or any successer section or statute of similar
import, as an organization described in Section

501{c) {3) of the Code, and

. Without limiting the foregoing, (i)} to- -
_conduct, operate and maifntain programs in the
city, County and State of New York that provide a
range of social services and mental health -
services, including but not limited to - :
transiticnal services for the meéntally disabled,
and (ii)' to own, lease, establish, operate and
maintain one or.more community residences. f£or the
mentally disabled and oné or more community
residences for the Homeless. :

NiNTH:  The 'foregho'ing Eﬁendment of 'the_-cértifica,te
of Incorporation wés authorized i:_y é‘unan'impgs "vété:;f_ the
é;nti;:e Board of ﬁir’ec’cors‘ of the éi:{rpofa&.ibn é"i:,__g' méef;ing hejl& .
on Septembei 23, 1993, Thére are nE Amembers'" é’btitled' toe vote. -

TENTH The séc-retary of State is désignateé as the
‘agent of {he Corporation upen whom process aga'iﬁs't the

~Corporation may be séryed.' The post'office address within the.
" State of NAew York to which the Secretary of State 4shall nail a
gopy'of any process aéaihst the COrpoi:ation served upon him .is:
Urban Pathways, Inc.
625 Eighth Avenue

. Suite 210 B&C
New York, NY 10018
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the unders:gned, natural persons
'over the age of elghteen years, ‘subscribe thls Certlflcate and '
afflrm the same as tv*ue undey penalty of perjury this Qg’ day .
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of- oy i 1994.

Ivan S,afhapiro .

Walter Bage 7

'STATE OF NEW YORK )
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counTy OF NEW YORK) L

Ivan Séhaplro, being duly swozrn, d‘eposeé‘ and éays th‘eﬁ: |
he is the ‘President of Urban Pathways, nc. and Walter Edge is -
the Secretary of Urbun Pathways, Inc. ' ' :

' Ivan sﬁhaplro

Smgn to before me th:.s
A¢ 2 day of ¢ 1994,

C/M.o/lu 4@1/ / R
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E SARY ANN TUZIO -
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'CERTIFICATE OFAMENDMENT OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

| WESTSIDE CLUSTER OF CENTERS AND SETTLEKENTS, ING,

Under Section 803 of tbe Not-—for——?rof.zt carporatlon Law

Tt is hereby cértifiéa that: . ﬁ
| ELB__SQ‘ "’he name of the ccrporatlon is wests:uia N
Cluster of Centers and Settlements, Inc._ _ | ‘ N
- SECOND: 'r’he Certlflcata of Incorporation of the
Corporation was flled with the New York Department of State on
«Gcctber 26, 197‘7.
zi_i_I_R_Q' The Ccrpcratmn vas 1ncorpc>rateé under §402
the New York Not»for-—Profxt Corporation Law. _ .
| OURTH:  The carpo::atlon is a corporation as defined
in subparagraph (a) (5) of Sectlon 102 -0f the Not-for-Proflt :
Caz?c:ration Law. o ' : |
FIFTH: The C‘orporation is a Type B cc:rpofatiori
under Section 201 of the Not—for——Profxt CGrporatlon Law and
will remain a Type B corporatlon.
SIXTH: The amendment of the Certificate of
Knccrporatwn effected by this Certa.ficate of Amenument is to
- = thange the name of the Corporation to URBAN PA’I'I{WAYS, INC.

There are no-menbers entatled to vote. ST ’
SEVERTH: To 5°‘°°’?P‘liSh the EQ?:.e_g_o,ibg_me;nﬁmnt,‘Wf—iw
article 1. of the Certificate of Incorporation, relating to the

Corporation’s name, is hereby amended to read as follows:
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: :t‘he name ‘of the "C’d’z,‘rﬁbréticn is URBANPATHWAYS, INC, -

EIGHTH: Tﬁé fo‘regoiﬁg'émer;dnﬁent of the Cei:‘tifiéate |
of Incorporata.on was authorized by a majority vote of the
entire Board of D:nrectors of the cOxporatlon (7 out of 8 of f:he
menbers of the Board of mrectors) , as pz:ovideﬁ in Artwle v
of the cwpcratn.on’ s By-Laws. . .

"HINTH: The Secretary -of State. is designated as the_
agent of the COrporatwn upon whom process aga:mst the
Carporatn.on may be sexved. The post office address withln the
State of Yew York to wmch the Secretzary of State shall mail a

copy of any process agaihst the Corporation served upon hm 5,55

Westside Cluster of Centers and Settlements, Inc.
625 Eighth Avenue .
Suite 210 BiC -
Rew. Yor}c, New York 10018 ‘

© IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, natural persons
over tbe age of eigliteen years, subscribe this @Trt;fmnte and -

affirm the same as true. unde,r penfft&of per‘ﬁ ~ ﬁus_ﬂ_ day
of December, 1991. ' : ' )
be HoGuize,/President”
- S Lot
iR 2 \_;,f . }':\..__,—

/f sfephanie Pinder, Secretary
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Settlements, Inc. .

Robert Abrdns

Attorney Genéral
State of New York

BY:

kss:stant Attorney General
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. STATE -OF NEW YORK ) .
A = - + BS5.k
COUNTY OF NEW YORK)

- - Janice McGuire, being duly sworn, deposes and says
that she is the President of Westside Cluster of Centers angd
Settlements, Inc. and Stephanie Pihder is the ‘Secretary of -
Westside Cluster of Centers and Sesttlements ' In and that no
previous application for approval of said Certi-fc e of
Amg.hdment- by any Justice of the Suprémy 2s pyer been
~made, ' : ST

1 to before me this |
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urban 575 Eighth Avenue
pathwayS 9" Floor

For homeless New Yorkers, New York, NY 10018
the way home,

Proposal for Homeless Outreach and Referral Services
PABT/LT
REP # 35907

Executive Summary

Urban Pathways, Inc. is a non-profit, community-based agency serving homeless adults in the
New York City area through outreach, assessment, shelter-based settings and transitional and
permanent housing. Urban Pathways has been providing these services for over thirty-eight
years, during which time the demand for services to homeless people in the New York
metropolitan area has grown tremendously. In response to this increased demand, the agency has
focused its growth on developing innovative programs, which serve seriously and persistently
mentally ill homeless adults, including homeless individuals with substance abuse problems, and
dual diagnoses (mentally ill and chemically addicted) within a continuum of care model.
Services are provided through a model which provides consumers with access to programs based
on individual need. These services include street outreach, drop-in centers, and transitional and
permanent supportive housing programs.

Urban Pathways has the resources and community relationships to establish an Outreach
Program for the Port Authority Bus Terminal/Lincoln Tunnel (PABT/LT) in an efficient and
expedient manner. Our staff are trained professionals with experience in working with the
homeless population.

1. Cost of Service

See Attachment B (Part IT ~ Cost Proposal Forms).

2. Linkages to Other Services

a. Describe the Proposer’s start up plan.

Utrban Pathways employs over 200 staff members at its more than 15 programs. Our ability to
hire, train, and provide administrative oversight for our diverse staff is demonstrated by our
continued growth and successful management of homeless services programs. We incorporate



new programs quickly and seamlessly into our administrative structure. We intend to staff
PABT/LT according to the staffing plan required in the RFP. Should this plan need to be
modified, we have the resources to accommodate any pro grammatic changes.

All staff employed by Urban Pathways are selected based upon their academic training, personal
commitment, and work experience with hard-to-reach populations. Our social services staff is
credentialed in the practice of human services. The Program Directors and agency senior
management have earned, at a minimum, cither a Master’s degree in a human service field or
several years of related work experience.

Urban Pathways anticipates that staff will be identified within two to three weeks of the contract
awarded. Three to four weeks later staff will be hired, and staff may be trained for a two to three
week period.

Our external recruitment of social service staff relies on reputable social service employment
sources, including nynp.biz, socialservice.com, and idealist.org. Our external recruitment of
operations staff includes a broad network of contacts with training programs including
FoodChange, HELP USA, Project Renewal, Easter Seals, Brooklyn College Superintendents
Club, and Urban Pathways® UPwards program. Whenever possible, through direct employment
or stipends, Urban Pathways retains consumers of homeless and/or mental health services.

Urban Pathways recognizes the importance of ongoing, focused staff training in achieving the
goals and objectives of its programs. Training for supervisory staff includes supervision
techniques and quality assurance standards. All staff receives agency orientation, including a
review of Urban Pathways’ policies and procedures, and protocols for critical incident reporting
based on funder and regulatory requirements. Staff receives training on Foothold Technology’s
AWARDS, a web-based case management system. Staff is also provided training on the
fundamentals of engaging clients while working towards stability and permanent housing.
Additional trainings include using motivational interviewing, stages of change, harm reduction
principles, Wellness Self-Management (W SM), crisis prevention and intervention techniques,
understanding established linkages and referrals, completion of a housing package, cultural
diversity, and counseling clients toward greater independence and permanency.

All job postings are written by program administrators in collaboration with the Human
Resources Department. Job descriptions for the positions for PABT/LT have already been
designed and approved.

Any individual hired will participate in all trainings mandated for every Urban Pathways
employee, including an organizational orientation session, while also undergoing trainings
specifically tailed for the program’s staff.

b. Provide the Proper’s agency organization chart.

See Attachment 1.
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C.

Provide the resumes of the homeless outreach team members (Management
Representative, Program Monitor, and Social Services Case Worker) and identify
the Proposer’s Project Manager of this effort.

See Aftachment 2 for homeless outreach team members’ resumes. The Project Manager for the
PABT/LT Outreach Program is Lisa Lombardi, LMSW.

d.

Provide the Proposer’s minimum employment criteria and identify homeless
outreach team member job titles.

Members of the homeless outreach team, along with minimum employment criteria for said
positions, include the following:

o Management Representative (Program Director): Minimum employment qualifications

for the Management Representative (Program Director) include: Master of Social Work
(MSW) degree in a mental health discipline and a minimum of three (3) years experience
in outreach and referral services to homeless individuals seeking shelter; in lieu of a
MSW, a BA/BS degree in social work, psychology or related human services field with a
minimum of three years experience working with the homeless or providing social
services; and possession of a valid driver’s license.

Program Monitor (Program Supervisor): Minimum employment qualifications for the
Program Monitor (Program Supervisor) include: Master of Social Work (MSW) degree
in a mental health discipline and a minimum of two (2) years experience with outreach
and referral services to homeless individuals seeking shelter; in lieu of a MSW, a BA/BS
degree in social work, psychology or related human services field with a minimum of
three (3) years experience working with the homeless or providing social services; and
possession of a valid driver’s license.

Social Services Case Worker: Minimum employment qualifications for the Social
Services Case Worker include: BA degree in a related field or CASAC, or three (3) years
experience working in outreach and referral services to homeless individuals seeking
shelter; and possession of a valid New York State driver’s license.

Provide a job description and responsibilities for members of the homeless outreach
team members (Management Representative, Program Monitor, and Social Services
Case Worker).

See Attachment 3.

f.

The Proposer shall submit within the proposal a list of all employees proposed to be
employed to provide the services herein upon award of the Contract at PABT and
LT. The list shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: the
name of the employee; his/her position; licenses; a brief outline of his/her experience
and/or past employment; total official paid leave days for the existing year (e.g.
vacation, personal, sick days, etc.) and other data deemed to be necessary. The
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Contractor shall verify all past employment and provide the Port Authority with a
copy of such verification upon request.

Urban Pathways is proposing the below listed staff to manage the PABT/LT outreach program:

e Project Manager: Lisa Lombardi, LMSW

o Management Representative: Jamel Garner

e Program Monitor: Matthew Kantor

e Social Services Case Worker: Hilton Douglas and Tyrone Prioleau

Resumes for the above staff members are included as Attachment 2.

Urban Pathways provides the following paid leave days per fiscal year for regular full-time
employees:

e Up to 4 weeks paid vacation time
e Up to 12 sick days

e Up to 3 personal days

e Upto 11 holidays

e Up to 3 dependent care days

g. Describe Proposer’s management philosophy, case management strategies and
techniques.

All Urban Pathways services are provided within the Wellness Self-Management (WSM)
framework, which looks to empower consumers to lead their own recovery and mental stability,
to act collaboratively with their treatment team, and to control the path to stabilization. WSM
encourages consumers to become engaged with services and to become a key member of their
own service plan and treatment team. With staff, consumers assess their progress, abilities and
goals and freely choose services appropriate to their needs. Within the confines of this
philosophy, relapse is perceived as both part of the recovery process and an opportunity for
growth, thus clients are never evicted from supportive housing because of failure to maintain
sobriety, abstinence, or medication compliance. ‘

It is expected that most clients will maximize the use of resources that we make available to
them to achieve their goals. For tenants who are resistant to access some or all of our services,
as well as hesitant to utilize formal treatment services to address mental health and substance
abuse issues, case managers will work with them to minimize harm. Helping clients to maintain
their housing will be the focus of Urban Pathways’ services. This will be accomplished by
developing tools to ensure rent payments are made and safe living habits are sustained.

Recording protocols for client files require that monthly service plans are reviewed and revised

bi-weekly, or as indicated, with clients. Progress notes are recorded with reference to the service
plan.
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Each supervisory social service staff member is responsible for monthly case file audits for
his/her supervisees. Minimally, all files will be reviewed once per quarter. The review includes
a combination of AWARDS data and paper documentation. Additionally, the Director of Social
Service monitors all case files by conducting random audits to ensure ongoing compliance with
Urban Pathways and governmental policies and procedures. At the same time, staff training and
clients’ needs are identified.

In order to enhance employees’ abilities and productivity, supervision is conducted on a bi-
weekly basis, for all levels of staff. At the program level, Program Directors supervise the
Director of Social Services and the Director of Operations, each of whom provide weekly
supervision to their respective staff members. Program Directors receive supervision from the
Deputy Executive Director. The Executive Director supervises the Deputy Executive Directors,
Director of Finance, Director of Human Resources, Director of Quality Improvement, and the
Director of Development.

Employee evaluations are conducted on an annual basis. Evaluations consist of a written review
of work performance, giving consideration at each review to changes in job duties or
responsibilities. These evaluations are helpful in sustaining a long and mutually productive
association with each of our employees.

Consistent with the professionalism on the agency’s front lines, the senior administrative staff
includes the Executive Director, Deputy Executive Directors, and Director of Quality
Improvement, all of whom hold at least Master’s degrees and have many years of training and
experience. This team supports the Program Directors, monitors the quality of services, reviews
all incident reporting, encourages innovative program development, and forecasts future
resources availability and other changes that could affect services. The agency also enjoys
strong program support from the Board of Directors.

Urban Pathways’ clinical quality assurance plan relates to all aspects of agency programming by
codifying the clinical standards, the processes for service provision review, and the
measurements of service effectiveness. It includes the designation of staff roles in monitoring
services and regulations regarding the timing of reviews and corrective action plans.

Although the agency operates a wide variety of programs at several sites, quality improvement
cuts across all variations to ensure that Urban Pathways’ programs are uniformly consistent and
effectively meeting high standards. The leadership of the senior management team and Board of
Directors ensure that quality improvement activities and corrective action plans are carried out in
accordance with an ongoing and thorough monitoring process.

The Urban Pathways leadership team embraces quality at each stage of service. Whether it is
facility maintenance, housing placements, or clinical interventions, the provision of quality care
is supported, reinforced and monitored. We embrace the use of client and staff driven quality
improvement projects to track, report on, implement and maintain change.

In order to further minimize barriers to recovery, Urban Pathways’ employees receive yearly
training on cultural competency. Urban Pathways is keenly aware that clients’ cultural histories,
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sociological factors and community resources impact their access to services, receptiveness to
our programs, and the relationships developed with our mental health professionals, all of which
are important when recovering mental illness and/or homelessness.

Urban Pathways is committed to providing culturally sensitive services to a diverse population of
clients, and we recruit staff that reflects consumers’ ethnic, racial, cultural, and linguistic
differences. The first step to developing a culturally competent environment is to break down
language barriers that may produce confusion, misunderstanding, and an inability to be receptive
to treatment. To that end, Urban Pathways employs staff who are fluent in different languages,
including Spanish and French. Indicators of Urban Pathways’ commitment to quality
improvement are its annual agency-wide staff training plan, utilization review services, inclusion
of program indicator measures, regular scheduled and unscheduled site visits by senior staff, and
planning for programmatic and fiscal accountability.

h. Describe Proposer’s overall understanding of the facility’s needs.

Urban Pathways understands the necessity of creatively addressing the needs of a difficult to
reach population through consistent, low threshold engagement complemented by individualized
assessment, intensive one-on-one case management, and strong ties to a wide network of referral
services. These programs engage consumers “where they are” and work with chronically
homeless consumers through outreach and case management in order to reduce homeless
recidivism.

Outreach programs place a high priority on targeting those who are chronically homeless in an
intense and systematic manner. Outreach programs work on dual fronts. While conducting
street outreach, the outreach programs work on obtaining long-term housing for those who have
been or are known to be homeless by assessing their duration of homelessness and determining
whether their needs require long-term intervention or can be resolved by means of immediate
referral and traveler's assistance. For those individuals who are self-referred, referred by police
or statement management, staff at the respective outreach teams conduct a preliminary
assessment, provide crisis intervention, and arrange referrals to a wide spectrum of service
providers with whom Urban Pathways has long-standing linkages.

To accomplish these goals, Urban Pathways will continue to deploy a team, experienced with the
population and trained to use the agency’s assessment and engagement techniques to reach the
homeless, including those who are service-resistant.

i. Demonstrate reporting methods, recordkeeping.

Urban Pathways currently captures its data and consumer records on an internet-based database
application, Foothold Technology’s AWARDS program. Database use includes case notes,
consumer contacts, service plans, progress notes, demographic information, medical and
psychiatric diagnoses and treatments, length of stay, school affiliations, number of discreet
services provided, referrals to other agencies, description of referrals to housing, categories of
housing placements and other necessary information relevant to programmatic functioning. Sites
use aggregate statistics as a basis for quarterly reports, which are then used for agency analysis
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of trends, service needs, and the basis for program development and quality improvement.
Reporting fields have been customized for each program, based upon clinical needs, regulatory
reporting and funder requirements.

Recording protocols for client files require that monthly service plans are reviewed and revised
bi-weekly, or as indicated, with clients. Progress notes are recorded with reference to the service
plan.

Each supervisory social service staff member is responsible for monthly case file audits for
his/her supervisees. Minimally, all files will be reviewed once per quarter. The review includes
a combination of AWARDS data and paper documentation. Additionally, the Director of Social
Services monitors all case files by conducting random audits to ensure ongoing compliance with
Urban Pathways’ and governmental policies and procedures. At the same time, staff training and
clients’ needs are identified.

All social service staff receive both orientation and ongoing training on the AWARDS program
as per their job requirements. The agency maintains a strict technology policy that requires
appropriate use for program purposes only, protecting the confidentiality of its consumers.

je Identify and discuss the strategies Proposer would employ to reduce the number of
homeless individuals at PABT/LT and strategies to reduce the rate of recidivism.

Urban Pathways proposes to provide outreach and referral services to homeless men and women
at PABT/LT. The goals of this program are to:

e Reduce the numbers of homeless persons taking shelter at PABT/LT;
e TFocus outreach services on this population;

e Improve consumers’ physical and mental health;

e Increase access to housing, detoxification, and medical services; and

e TEnhance PABT/LT linkages with the local community, as well as the social service
community by obtaining additional psychiatric services to provide mental health services
and to develop strategies to work with service-resistant clients by utilizing psychiatric
interns through our drop-in center.

Attainment of the goals begins with the measures proposed for the PABT/LT outreach program.
In order to meet these goals, Urban Pathways will operate a well-run program that will draw on
the agency’s 38 years of experience in working with chronically homeless individuals in the
context of a continuum of care approach. Outreach workers will canvass inside and outside
areas, approaching homeless individuals. Outreach workers will then assess, refer and transport
these individuals to appropriate services. —Outreach staff will be in communication with
PABT/LT personnel and Port Authority Police for additional referrals of homeless individuals.

Inside PABT/LT, outreach workers will place special emphasis on canvassing seating, stairwells,
parking areas, and remote locations where homeless people tend to congregate. A member of the
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team will transport the homeless individuals to drop-in centers, shelters, hospitals, detoxification
programs and other referral sites. When consumers are not being served, staff will use office
time to complete consumer charting, draw up statistical documentation on the program, and meet
with agency management and Port Authority Police representatives to monitor and fine-tune the
program.

The actions described, undertaken by the program’s skilled staff, will reduce the number of
homeless people who frequent the PABT/LT area by connecting them with the services they
need. In addition, Urban Pathways brings several unique approaches to the management of the
PABT/LT outreach program.

k. Describe the accomplishments that can be realistically expected from the program
and how those accomplishments can be attained and measured.

At the begimning of the contract period (i.e. the first month), we will conduct a comprehensive
weekly count of homeless individuals frequenting the PABT/LT area. Using this initial number
as a baseline, counts will be conducted on a monthly basis as one tool to determine the efficacy
of the program model in reducing the number of homeless individuals utilizing the program and
to determine if new trends in the homeless population are appearing.

Urban Pathways will accomplish program goals of reducing the number of chronically homeless
individuals in and around the PABT/LT area by focusing outreach services on this population,
improving consumers’ physical and mental health, increasing access to housing, detox, and
medical services, and enhancing PABT/LT’s linkages with the local community as well as the
social service community.

With a strong, integrated social service plan in place, Urban Pathways will engage these
individuals and motivate them to accept services. Urban Pathways anticipates that most
homeless individuals will eventually be responsive to some level of service delivery. Many
individuals will move indoors to a variety of placements such as shelters, drop-in centers,
detoxification or long-term addiction rehabilitation programs, lIong-term  psychiatric
hospitalization, transitional or permanent housing. For a number of the homeless, these
placements will result in permanent relocation. A smaller percentage of individuals will move in
and out of a variety of settings, sometimes for prolonged periods.

Some individuals may choose to remain homeless indefinitely, albeit with improved functioning,
as they are enabled through service provisions to better meet some of their needs. This may
include improved hygiene and physical health, or decreased psychiatric symptoms and associated
problematic behavior. As this program seeks to focus service delivery on a core group of
hardcore and presumably long-term homeless individuals, it is anticipated that a long-term
investment of outreach and case management services will continue to be needed.

L Describe the types of program obstacles Proposer envisions considering the
remaining service resistant homeless population and how the Proposer might
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address those obstacles. Identify and distinguish the different homeless populations
at PABT/LT, if appropriate.

Program obstacles common to this type of outreach effort include service refusal, recidivism and
lack of available slots in appropriate services. Urban Pathways’ program design includes a
variety of strategies to address these obstacles. Ongoing assessment of need and match to
appropriate services reduce dropout and recidivism rates. Proper recognition, sensitivity, and
offering the homeless what they are asking for at a given time, increases the chance of success.

The unique programmatic linkages proposed to increase retention in the area’s service shelter
system will impact on recidivism. Urban Pathways’ capacity to leverage a full range of
community and hospital based linkages will maximize access to service slots. Service refusal by
consumers can be addressed by consistent and creative engagement efforts and, when indicated,
active collaboration with police personnel so that necessary enforcement activity can also serve
the purpose of reinforcing these individuals’ motivation to use social services.

m. Describe the types of assistance and support Proposer would expect to receive from
PABT and LT in order to achieve the social service plan.

Collaboration with PABT/LT management and the Port Authority Police Department will be
critical to the success of this program. Mutual identification of priorities is essential in ensuring
effective deployment of the various staff and resources dedicated to this program. Collaborative
problem-solving efforts are key to the development of effective solutions and strategies given the
multi-faceted nature of the homeless problem. There may be issues involving facility
maintenance personnel and their relationship with homeless individuals that can become a
strategic component of a collaborative plan. Urban Pathways proposes to use monthly meetings
with PABT/LT personnel and the Port Authority Police Department as an ongoing forum for
problem identification and prioritization. Urban Pathways anticipates that flexibility regarding
program modifications will be necessary over time as both internal and external factors change
the face and scope of the problem of homelessness in these facilities.

PABT/LT staff and customers are best able to support program efforts when they are kept
informed as to the nature of the problem and outcomes for the program. Urban Pathways will
collaborate with PABT/LT personnel concerning ongoing mechanisms to keep staff and
customers informed about what is happening and what is being done to address the problem.
This could, for example, include collaboration on the delivery of training seminars for newly
hired PABT/LT staff on homelessness-related issues. Or, another level of collaboration would
involve Urban Pathways keeping the PABT/LT management abreast of trends and changes to
anticipate in homelessness-related issues. Similarly, Urban Pathways anticipates that program
staff would be interested in formal or informal training opportunities from police personnel
regarding relevant enforcement issues and skills to heighten personal safety in public settings.
Additionally, we will develop public education communication materials which will be
distributed to the traveling public encouraging them to refer homeless individuals to the
PABT/LT outreach services for assistance. '
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n. Identify auxiliary service providers, which Proposer might contact with to
supplement and enrich its service to PABT/LT.

Urban Pathways does not intend to contract with any providers. All services will be self-
performed. We will continue to build community relationships to enhance our ability to provide
services to the PABT/LT population.

0. Provide a description of necessary distinctive uniforms with woven identification
insignia of a type and style, which shall be subject to the prior and continuing
approval of the Port Authority.

From Urban Pathways® experience with outreach teams, it is important for outreach teams to
wear some form of identification for both safety and recognition purposes. All Urban Pathways
outreach teams wear identification cards as well as jackets with large white lettering that states
the outreach program and Urban Pathways names.

For safety purposes, it is vital in any kind of a crisis that police and emergency medical service
(EMS) staff are able to easily identify the outreach staff when in the field. Often when
consumers are contacted upon outreach and present with a serious medical or psychiatric
condition, the outreach team contacts police and EMS. It makes the process immediate and
efficient for getting the consumer help. When the outreach staff members are recognized by
their jackets, they are seen as trained personnel who are there to relay relevant information
needed as opposed to simply being an onlooker.

In terms of more general recognition, by wearing the outreach jackets, both traveling customers
and potential consumers notice the outreach being conducted at the PABT/LT area. Customers
become more aware of the PABT/LT’s responsible and progressive response to the homeless
situation observed at the PABT/LT area. Further, homeless individuals who may feel generally
unsafe are able to immediately identify approaching strangers as social service providers and not
a threat to their safety.

p- Describe Proposer’s service philosophy. Include a mission statement and/or other
types of supporting material.

Urban Pathways believes that each homeless person has the potential to move from life on the
streets all the way to a quality life in supportive or independent housing. Staff moves toward this
goal through their careful, consistent, and concerted approach in the agency’s continuum of care.
Urban Pathways’ mission statement is as follows:

Urban Pathways is a nonprofit, community-based, human services agency
pioneering the use of basic and therapeutic services to respond to the problems of

the homeless through a continuum of care.

We provide opportunities, hope and dignity, which empower our clients to
improve the circumstances of their lives.
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We honor each person’s right to achieve his or her place in society, including a
decent place to live. We provide leadership in addressing the causes and in
developing comprehensive solutions to the problem of homelessness and its
interrelated conditions.

Agency Mission and Goals

Urban Pathways’ mission is to respond to the problems of the homeless through a continuum of
care; to provide opportunities, hope, and dignity which empower consumers to improve the
circumstances of their lives; and to honor each person’s right to achieve his or her place in
society, including a decent place to live. The mission also directs the agency to provide
leadership in addressing the causes and developing comprehensive solutions to the problem of
homelessness.

Our goals are to help homeless men and women leave the streets and find permanent shelter,
self-respect, and the ability to live as independently as possible within the community.

Key Elements of Urban Pathways’ Service Philosophy

The agency is committed to empowering homeless' individuals to recognize and reclaim their
self-worth, self-determination, dignity, and responsibility. In order to help homeless individuals
improve the quality of their lives, Urban Pathways has developed a service philosophy which
recognizes that the complex and multiple problems of the homeless can only be met through a
comprehensive approach to each individual’s needs. Consumer empowerment is central to
Utrban Pathways’ philosophy of service. From the point of the initial contact, Urban Pathways’

case managers undertake an ongoing assessment of needs with consumers.

Engagement

Engagement is the process of establishing mutual respect and trust in the helping relationship,
thus reducing fear and allowing the therapeutic work to begin. At Urban Pathways, engagement
is viewed as the comerstone of case management services. Engagement is not a linear process
but is guided by past experiences of consumers, particularly with regard to negative experiences
with families, service systems, personal feelings of failure, and profound losses.

Comprehensive Case Management

Comprehensive case management involves linking consumers to essential services on-site within
Urban Pathways and to service delivery systems in the community. Case managers are the
coordinators of a wide range of services that include, but are not limited to, medical, psychiatric,
substance abuse, financial, educational, vocational and socialization activities. Urban Pathways
has established an extensive referral system to a great variety of service providers. Good case
management involves making appropriate matches between consumers and resources available
in the community.

Strengths Perspective

Another key service philosophy of Urban Pathways is the strengths perspective in working with
consumers. The strengths perspective at Urban Pathways recognizes the consumer as a whole
person with attributes on which to build as well as issues needing to be addressed and resolved.
Adopting a strengths perspective in comprehensive case management practice requires that
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Urban Pathways® staff believe in the potential of all consumers to grow and heal and that this
potential guides individual transformation.

The Consumer/Case Manager Relationship

The consumer/case manager relationship is the essential means for addressing the concrete and
therapeutic needs of consumers. Case management staff is trained to see the value in helping
consumers with concrete tasks as a way of establishing trust.

The agency’s experience has shown that quality relationship building strengthens the consumers’
willingness to accept the link to essential services and is paramount in helping to motivate and
inspire consumers to move from a state of homelessness toward planning for housing. This
longer-term goal of housing is the end result of significant work on problems that have
contributed to homelessness.

Group Work

Group work is an important aspect of service philosophy and is also an important treatment
modality at Urban Pathways. Staff recognizes the essential value of groups in encouraging peer
exchange and education as well as their use in reducing consumers’ isolation. Group work
sessions cover the many areas that consumers need to address. Mental health, substance abuse,
domestic violence, vocational readiness, and housing transition are examples of the areas

covered by regularly held group sessions with a specific curriculum of topics covered.

The service philosophy and practices described above coincide with PABT/LT’s goal of
reducing the number of homeless individual in the bus terminal and tunnel. Urban Pathways’
programs are designed to aid homeless individuals in achieving sobriety, stability and permanent
housing. The value that Urban Pathways places on assessing consumers’ problems correctly,
supporting and encouraging them to accept the help which will promote change, and connecting
them with appropriate housing has led to great success in achieving permanent placements and
very low recidivism rates.

q. Describe Proposer’s philosophy toward working with the Port Authority Police and
cooperating with police department procedures on a regular basis. List amy
programs in which you have worked with the Police of any jurisdiction in the
provision of homeless services as well as the names and telephone number of police
personnel references in these jurisdictions. '

Urban Pathways has had considerable experience in working with police in transportation and
other agencies. For example, long before any of our outreach contracts began, Urban Pathways
had been working with the Port Authority Police. As a prior tenant of the Port Authority Bus
Terminal, Urban Pathways has experienced police assistance and protection since 1988.

In our prior outreach engagements with the Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, Urban
Pathways established a relationship with the Port Authority Police. Staff realizes that the success
of Operation Alternative and the George Washington Bridge Bus Station Outreach programs was
tied to effective cooperation with the Port Authority Police. Outreach has been done in
collaboration with Port Authority Police personnel, which in turn fosters a good relationship.
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Also, since the Port Authority Police are the principal source of referrals of homeless individuals,
good communication between our outreach teams and the Port Authority Police was of
paramount importance.

Our Amtrak outreach team, situated in Pennsylvania Station New York, developed a strong
relationship with the Amtrak Police. The success of Urban Pathways’ Amtrak Penn Station
Outreach Program was related to our good working relationship with the Amtrak Police.
Although the Penn Station Program was not contractually obligated to do joint outreach with the
Amtrak Police, the Penn Station Program worked with the Amtrak Police in many ways. The
outreach team at this site quickly built a strong collaboration with the Amtrak Police through
daily outreach tours, late night outreach tours, regularly scheduled status report meetings, and
ongoing communication in order to identify problems and thus resolve them. In addition,
Amtrak Police personnel called on the outreach team for outreach services and directed homeless
consumers to the outreach program’s office. The Amitrak Penn Station outreach team sometimes
needed the Amtrak Police’s protection when it was conducting daily outreach and depended on
the Police’s availability in an emergency. It was also useful for the outreach team to know about
sightings by the Amtrak Police of homeless individuals in unusual locations.

Since 2005, Urban Pathways has operated its PATH Outreach Program. Funded by The Port
Authority of NY & NJ, the PATH program covers outreach along 6™ Avenue in the PATH train
stations on the West Side of Manhattan from 331 Sreet South to Christopher Street. Homeless
individuals tend to gravitate to these stations as they are warm, safe and clean. Thus, the PATH
Outreach team creatively engages many of these people and moves them from the station by
providing transportation to drop-in centers, shelters, hospitals, and other appropriate facilities.
The PATH outreach team provides homeless outreach, transportation and referral services 8
hours per day from October 1% to March 31%, 7 days a week, 26 weeks a year, from 10:00 p.m. to
6:00 a.m.

In January, 2013 Urban Pathways started their outreach program at Newark International
Airport. For several weeks, the outreach team started to engage and familiarize themselves with
many of the clients living at the airport. From January to March, the outreach team contacted
over 160 clients staying in the terminals. In April, the weather started getting warmer and the
number of new clients coming to the terminals declined. This number would continue to decline
until October. During October, the number of homeless people coming to the airport increased
when the weather grew cold again. The number continued to increase in November, and
increased significantly in December. The increase was probably due to people looking for
shelter from the frigid temperatures that occurred for several days.

Since January, 2013, the outreach team has placed:

e TFifty clients into a transitional or emergency shelter program

o Fourteen clients into permanent housing

o Eight clients were placed in a detoxification program

e Twenty clients were transported by EMS to the hospital for medical or mental health

treatment.
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Outreach staff also helped clients complete their entitlement applications and get their benefits.
Fifty-four applications were completed in total for the following types of benefits:

One fixed income application (VA/SSUSSD)

Twelve food stamps applications

Seven public assistance (cash assistance) applications
Ten Medicaid/Medicare applications

Ten applications for legal assistance with entitlements
Twelve applications for identification

Two applications for birth certificates

The outreach team has made a comnection with a few programs that service the homeless,
substance abuse, and mentally ill populations in New J ersey, including:-

The Mobile Crisis Team at Beth Israel Hospital: This team coordinated with the outreach
team to get clients to the hospital for psychiatric treatment. One such client was
transferred to the care of an intensive case management team (ICM) and placed in
temporary housing.

The Mental Health Association of Essex County: Helped coordinate with the outreach
team to place clients in apartments in Montclair, New Jersey.

Department of Welfare at 18 Rector Street: Staff from Rector Street have assisted several
clients with acquiring public assistance and shelter placement.

Most of the homeless men and women that come through the airport are just passing through.
They are not looking to permanently settle at the airport. There are, however, a group of eleven
clients who are encountered by the outreach team daily, but are resistant to accepting services.
Of the eleven clients:

Five are starting to talk with team about entitlements and housing.
Two were referred to Community Action for adult protection services.
One comes to the terminal at night but leaves before police shift change in the morning.

Three remain resistant to services and are usually escorted out of the terminals by police
officers.

Police personnel in the above-referenced jurisdictions are as follows:

Operation Alternative and George Washington Bus Station Outreach

Michael A. Fedorko, Superintendent of Police, (800) 828-7275
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Amtrak Penn Station Qutreach
Lieutenant Richard Ronaldo, Badge # 95, (212) 630-7112
Lieutenant Kevin Molloy, (347) 498-4875

PATH Outreach
Lieutenant Dominic Acque, (201) 216-6082

EWR Outreach
Lieutenant Daniel Ray, Tour Commander, Port Authority Police Department, Newark Liberty
International Airport, (973) 961-6000

Y. Submit an M/WBE Participation Plan, in accordance with the M/WBE
Subcontracting Provisions hereunder.

Urban Pathways does not intent to subcontract any of the services offered in this proposal.

S. Define how Proposer will manage the cases of the individual bomeless people and
the extent and content of report generation to PABT and LT management.

Each homeless person presents a spectrum of problems and needs, constituting an individual
person’s case, that requires specialized management geared to the resolution of these problems
and the meeting of these needs. Urban Pathways has conceptualized and practiced a
comprehensive case management model of service delivery since its inception. Important
elements of comprehensive case management are:

e Assessment

e Planning

e Coordination

e Negotiation

e Advocacy

e Monitoring
High quality, comprehensive case management services are important to the success of this
project. Case management is a multi-step process that links consumers to a wide range of
needed services. Homeless service resistant persons often have multiple problems and require
assistance from a wide range of service providers and organizations to meet their needs. The

bureaucracy and fragmentation of New York City service systems compound the difficulty that
homeless persons already experience in receiving appropriate care.

For many years, Urban Pathways has been able to turn a conceptual theory of comprehensive

case management model info a successful outreach practice. We believe all of our outreach
programs’ success can be contributed to two major project capacities:
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1. The ability to communicate with our consumers. Of the full-time, part-time, and per
diem staff members, many are fluent in Spanish and English. The language skill and
ethnic sensitivity of staff members were employment factors that enable our outreach
teams to communicate with the diversified population that needs social services in the
West Midtown area.

2. Finally, Urban Pathways’ own continuum of care and extensive linkage options enables
the team to manage a large caseload and effectively move them through the City’s social
service system.

t, Describe the techniques the homeless outreach team members would use to engage,
assess and evaluate the homeless individuals.

Consumer engagement in a relationship with the PABT/LT outreach team is the cornerstone of
service delivery. Urban Pathways understands that this relationship is the critical vehicle that
will support consumers’ movement.

PABT/LT outreach staff will use engagement techniques that emphasize:

e The use of low-key, well-paced, non-threatening approaches;

o Communication of respect and compassion for the individual;

e Repeated offers of service and socialization,

e A consistent, reliable team;

e The meeting of basic, concrete needs and provision of essential services; and

e Building of consumer participation in the identification of their problems and needs.

Initial engagement efforts must be slow, avoiding an overly probing or infrusive process and
paced to each consumer’s capacity to make connections with the team. The team will introduce
themselves, describe the services they have to offer, and gauge the consumer’s reaction to this
offer before proceeding further. Socialization is key during the initial phase of contact for
consumers who are unable to focus directly on service needs but are amenable to contact with the
team. The team will maintain a non-threatening, low-key approach that ameliorates the profound
isolation of homelessness. It also begins the assessment process as information is gathered
informally during the course of conversation about consumers’ present functioning, history and
needs. Throughout these contacts, the team will communicate respect, compassion and
acceptance for individuals and their problems. By treating individuals in a caring and
nonjudgmental fashion, the individuals feel supported. This builds individuals’ connection to the
team and the likelihood of accepting the team’s offer of services.

Team reliability, consistency, and the repeated offers of service are key elements of the
engagement process. These elements build trust and safety for homeless individuals who have
frequently been victimized or abandoned by other individuals, systems and institutions in their
lives. Often the team must demonstrate that they can be counted on before homeless individuals
will take them upon on their offers of service. The provision of basic, concrete needs such as a
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referral or escort for a meal or overnight shelter is a potent means for demonstrating the team’s
ability to meet their needs and instill confidence in the team’s ability to support them. It also
lays the groundwork for helping individuals with their more complex service needs.

Lastly, techniques that build consumers’ capacity to participate in the identification of problems
and needs are critical to their engagement in service delivery. From the onset, the team must
communicate acceptance and appreciation for what individuals have been through, and continue
to struggle with, in life. Consumer strengths are recognized as consumers are helped to identify
skills of survival. By avoiding undue focus on deficits or dysfunction, the team builds
consumers’ feelings of self-worth and stimulates hope that change is possible. This is a
considerable tool for engagement as individuals are more willing and able to address problems
and needs when strengths can also be experienced and promoted. In this manner, consumers are
ultimately helped to participate in service planning and goal setting with the team. When service
goals are meaningful for consumers, there is a mutuality of purpose between consumer and staff
that keeps consumers connected to the team.

u. Describe a process and schedule for meeting with the facility, Police personnel and
PABT and LT management staff to discuss the progress of homeless individuals
contacted.

Urban Pathways’ outreach programs currently participate in monthly meetings with the funding
management of the programs and the corresponding police to review project progress and
collaborate on the development of strategies needed to address obstacles encountered in outreach
programming. This format is successful in promoting communication and proceeding in a
coordinated way with outreach program activities in the designated catchment areas. Based on
the success of these monthly meetings, Urban Pathways proposes to replicate this
communication model for the PABT/LT Outreach Program.

Urban Pathways will facilitate a monthly meeting with PABT/LT’s management, Port Authority
police personnel, and the Outreach Program’s Management Representative. When appropriate,
senior staff of Urban Pathways will attend these meetings. Monthly reports will be distributed to
PABT/LT personnel prior to these meetings and used as the basis for review of project progress
and the identification of key issues requiring resolution. In addition to monthly meetings, Urban
Pathways’ staff will be available to meet with PABT/LT personnel on an as needed basis, as
circumstances require. It may be necessary to meet more frequently during the start-up phase.

Urban Pathways’ project staff will prepare monthly and annual progress reports. These reports
will contain a narrative section over-viewing service delivery and program development
activities conducted during the reporting period. Accomplishments will be highlighted by
sample case summaries and significant programmatic issues will be identified. A statistical
section of the report will provide basic demographic data on consumers such as age, gender,
race, and type of disability or problem. Data will also be provided on service outcomes such as:
the number of individuals approached with location specificity; types of services offered,
delivered or refused; types of referrals; and confirmed placements made. The number of
unduplicated consumers will be reported as new consumers or repeating consumers and total
consumers. Urban Pathways will provide other reporting as required.
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Staff will collect basic data on services provided at PABT/LT. The team will maintain a daily
activity log documenting consumer contacts. The log will specify where consumers were located
when seen by the team during outreach and their station location. The log will also categorize
the type of services delivered. This will allow for the collection of data on the number of
consumer contacts, the types of services delivered or refused, and referrals and confirmed
placements made. The data will include an unduplicated count of people served showing new
and repeat use. This data will show the number of people that have been seen and have not
returned to PABT/LT.

Urban Pathways will keep accurate records of individuals serviced by location and will
implement timely reporting systems. The data will be reported prior to the monthly service
coordination meeting. The presentation format of data will show the current and three previous
months of information in order to more easily observe trends. Annual and summary data reports
will be completed.

v. Set forth a method of identifying and distinguishing the services provided at
PABT/LT.

Urban Pathways proposes to provide outreach and referral services to homeless men and women
at PABT/LT. The goals of this program are to: '

e Reduce the numbers of homeless persons taking shelter at PABT/LT;
e Focus on outreach services on this population;

e Improve consumers’ physical and mental health;

o Increase access to housing, detoxification, and medical services; and

e TFnhance PABT/LT linkages with the local community, as well as the social service
community by obtaining additional psychiatric services to provide mental health services
and to develop strategies. to work with service-resistant clients by utilizing psychiatric
interns through our drop-in center.

Attainment of the goals begins with the measures proposed for the PABT/LT Outreach Program.
In order to meet these goals, Urban Pathways will operate a well-run program that will draw on
the agency’s 38 years of expetience in working with chronically homeless individuals in the
context of a continuum of care approach. Outreach workers will canvass inside and outside
areas, approaching homeless individuals. Outreach workers will then assess, refer and transport
these individuals to appropriate services. The outreach staff will be in communication with
PABT/LT personnel and Port Authority police for additional referrals of homeless individuals.

Inside PABT/LT, outreach workers will place special emphasis on canvassing seating, stairwells,
parking areas, and remote locations where homeless people tend to congregate. A member of the
team will transport the homeless individuals to drop-in centers, shelters, hospitals, detoxification
programs and other referral sites. When consumers are not being served, staff will use office
time to complete consumer charting, draw up statistical documentation on the program, and meet
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with agency management and Port Authority police representatives to monitor and fine-tune the
program.

The actions described, undertaken by the program’s skilled staff, will reduce the number of
homeless people who frequent the bus terminal by connecting them with the services they need.
In addition, Urban Pathways brings several unique approaches to the management of the
PABT/LT Outreach Program.

3. Technical Approach to Scope of Work

Identify any guaranteed bed space, number and Jocation, the Proposer either owns or
contracts for in order to accommodate the homeless individuals at PABT/LT. Note: The
Contractor, at all times, shall have a resource in a private facility within the New York
Shelter System of at least ten (10) shelter beds for at least ten (10) individuals. Describe the
method of addressing extreme cold weather needs and the accessibility to an increased
number of shelter beds during this period.

Through its safe havens and drop-in center, Urban Pathways has access to 53 shelter and respite
beds in the summer and 71 shelter and respite beds in the winter. In extreme weather conditions,
we will utilize the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s network of providers
as indicated in Attachment 4.

a. Describe the shelters that will be utilized, including location of shelter, number of
beds available and whether they accept families, males, females and youth. In the
event of a severe weather emergency, and when private shelter beds are not
available, the Contractor shall seek beds from the private or public shelter system.

Urban Pathways has access to the following shelter and respite beds:

o 9 beds through our Hegeman and Travelers Safe Havens; and
e Through our Olivieri Drop-In Center, 62 respite beds in the winter and 44 respite beds in
the summer

The above-referenced shelter and respite beds are targeted for single males and females age 18
years and older.

b. Provide the method the Proposer will employ to transport the homeless individuals
from PABT/LT to private or city shelter beds, drop in centers, reception centers and
the like.

PABT/LT Outreach Program staff will provide transportation to homeless individuals from
PABT/LT to shelters, drop-in and reception centers, as well as other referrals or placements.
Urban Pathways will enter into a two-year lease on or purchase a seven passenger van for this
purpose. Staff members who operate the vehicle will be required to possess a current, valid
driver’s license and have excellent driving records.
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c. Describe the Proper’s access to related outreach and referral service such as but not
limited to: mental health services, medical services, chemical and alcohol
detoxification programs, drop in programs, training, veteran services and benefits
programs.

Key to Urban Pathways’ social service strategy is the linking of consumers to a full range of
services and placements that meet a diverse spectrum of needs. The fragmented and bureaucratic
nature of the human service system can tax the resources of even the most sophisticated
consumers of services. Homeless individuals often require considerable assistance negotiating
and sustaining access to services. Brokering and advocating access on a case-by-case basis is a
key function of individual case management services.

Urban Pathways proposes to leverage existing solid collaborative relationships with providers
across the city to link PABT/LT Outreach Program consumers to important services. In return,
Urban Pathways offers reciprocity to consumers of other agencies who want to utilize programs
of Urban Pathways. The agency’s capacity for sustaining these linkages is substantial. This was
demonstrated during the New York City Department of Homeless Services’ Request for Proposal
process for the services to drop-in center consumers. Urban Pathways received letters of
commitment from over 50 different service providers. The commitment also included 53
Partnership for the Homeless church and synagogue shelter beds for Olivieri consumers.

Determining the individuals’ readiness and capacity to utilize these placements as well as
ensuring a good fit between consumer needs and program services is a critical component of
assessment at this juncture. Sound assessment of these factors is key to reducing recidivism and
the consumers’ experience of “failure.”

In addition, Urban Pathways’ continuum of care, including the services available through our
programs, will substantially add to the effectiveness and success of the PABT/LT Outreach
Program.

Urban Pathways has been providing services to homeless adults in New York City since 1980,

having led the way with the establishment of the Antonio G. Olivieri Center for Homeless
Women, when there were virtually no organized approaches, private or public, to the emerging

problem of homelessness.

Over this period, the agency has created a contimum of care that stretches from street outreach
through drop-in centers to transitional and permanent housing, and has served more than 100,000
clients, including a significant percentage with histories of chemical dependencies, mental illness
and a dual diagnosis of mental illness and chemical dependency (MICA). We have established
an extensive multi-service network of providers to ensure that clients have access to a wide range
of community-based services. Urban Pathways maintains close connections with medical and
psychiatric providers. Through partnerships with PPOH, Project Renewal and Care for the
Homeless, all of our clients have the opportunity to benefit from an extraordinary array of
services that deal with physical and mental health, substance abuse, independent living skills,
vocational rehabilitation, and housing readiness needs.
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In addition to the large population of mentally ill and/or chemically addicted clients served, there
is a high number with multiple medical diagnoses and histories of physical, emotional or sexual
abuse. An increasing number of formerly incarcerated individuals have been seeking services.
Despite the complex and tenacious nature of its clients’ issues, Urban Pathways achieves success
in helping clients attain the stability and skills necessary to obtain and maintain permanent
housing. This is due to the agency’s innovative models and effective approaches, which are
coordinated to meet clients’ needs on an individualized basis.

d. Where appropriate, the Proposer should include letters certifying the necessary
linkages to support access to facilities required in Attachment B, Part I, Section 11

entitled “Outreach, Transportation and Referral Services.”

A letter of support from the NYC Department of Homeless Services is included as Attachment 5.

b

Overall Experience Including Financial Capability

a. Provide complete background information on your agency/organization (the
Proposer) and your agency’s current and future business plan. Include information
on any predecessor and related agencies.

Urban Pathways currently provides homeless services through over 15 programs. Services are
provided through a model based on information sharing, empowerment, and assistance. Clients
are encouraged to develop and achieve personal goals toward independence. Through consistent
engagement, individualized freatment and links to a wide network of services within and outside
the Urban Pathways’ continuum, these programs help consumers move toward stability, recovery
and, in the end, housing,.

Urban Pathways’ organizational history and wealth of experience in serving New York City’s
homeless population span 38 years. Our commitment to homeless services is evidenced by our
development and operation of the following homeless programs throughout the years:

e In 1980, Urban Pathways established the first drop-in center in the country serving only
women, the Antonio G. Olivieri Center for Homeless Women.

o In 1981, opened The Travelers Hotel, a transitional shelter housing 36 homeless women
and men.

e In 1988, Urban Pathways created The Open Door, a drop-in center located behind the
Port Authority bus terminal.

e In 1989, developed Cluster House, a supportive housing residence for formerly homeless
mentally ill and dually diagnosed women providing a safe, caring environment with a
network of service to prevent hospitalization or homelessness.

o In 1996, started the Assessment, Diagnosis and Engagement (ADE) outreach program to
care for a population of alienated and underserved homeless adults residing on the streets.
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e In 1997, opened Ivan Shapiro House, a supportive housing residence for mentally ill men
and women. In addition, Urban Pathways launched Operation Alternative, an outreach
and referral program providing services to homeless individuals living in an around the
Port Authority Bus Terminal and at the entrance to the Lincoln Tunnel.

e In 2000, Urban Pathways launched George Washington Bridge Bus Station Outreach and
the ESTEEM (now UPwards) job readiness programs.

e In 2005, launched the AMTRAK Penn Station and PATH Outreach Programs to provide
outreach and referral services to homeless individuals in and around the Pennsylvania
Station/New York complex and in the PATH stations along the Sixth Avenue corridor.

e In 2007, was selected by the Manhattan Consortium to provide expanded outreach
services. In addition, Urban Pathways converted The Travelers Hotel into a safe haven, a
low-threshold residence with the goal of moving clients into permanent housing,.

e In 2008, launched the Flatiron BID Outreach Program; closed the George Washington
Bridge Bus Station Outreach and Operation Alternative programs; established the first 26
units of our DOHMH-funded Scattered Site Housing program.

¢ In 2009, launched the Fashion Center BID Outreach Program; started development and
pre-development on five new supportive housing residences; added 34 units of OMH-
contracted beds to our Scattered Site Housing program.

e In 2010, opened the Hegeman Safe Haven in East New York for 55 men and women;
added 40 units to the Scattered Site Housing program; with City cuts, closed The Open
Door and transitioned the Olivieri Center to a co-ed model.

e In March, 2011, Urban Pathways began renovation to our Cluster House facility, re-
designing it to operate as a supportive permanent housing program for 52 mentally ill
men and women.

¢ In November 2012, The Residence at Hallet’s Cove, a 50-unit OMH licensed residence
located in Astoria Queens, opened. The building was fully occupied by March 31, 2013.

Consistent with Urban Pathways’ commitment to providing housing for the neediest of
New York’s disabled m'h'~7pnq, The Residence at Hallet’s Cove serves NY/NY III
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Populations A and B.

e In May, 2013, opened the 53" Street Apartments residence, providing permanent,
affordable housing for 13 low-income, formerly homeless adults.

e In October, 2013, the NYS Office of Mental Health asked Urban Pathways to assume
responsibility for 22 community residence beds located in the Bronx that were formerly
operated by H.O.M.E.E . This program, renamed the Crotona Community Residence,
allows Urban Pathways to assist seriously and persistently mentally ill adults who require
more supervision before they can fully realized their community living goals. Moving
into one of our CR/SRO programs is generally the next housing level for the clients in
this program.

e Urban Pathways operates 64 OMH Apartment Treatment units. The Apartment
Treatment program provides residents with the opportunity to live independently, while
still having the benefit of frequent staff support. Residents work on subjects needed for
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independent living such as symptom and medication management, accessing community
resources and budgeting. On October 1, 2013, OMH asked Urban Pathways to
incorporate 24 additional beds formerly operated by HOMEE. into our existing
Apartment Treatment Program. The addition of these units increased our ATP portfolio
to 64 units.

Urban Pathways serves homeless adults, including those with serious and persistent mental
illness, substance abuse problems, and dual diagnoses (mentally ill and chemically addicted).
Through consistent engagement, concrete services, individualized treatment and links to a wide
network of services within and outside our agency, our programs help homeless individuals
move toward stability, independence, housing and recovery.

Our mission is to provide opportunities for hope and dignity, which empower clients to improve
the circumstances of their lives. By affording a decent place to live, we honor each person’s
right to achieve her/his place in society. For over 30 years, Urban Pathways has provided
leadership in developing ovidenced-based comprehensive solutions to the problems of
homelessness, mental illness, and substance abuse.

Urban Pathways’ front line work with the City’s homeless population has contributed to the
successful revitalization of the Times Square, Port Authority Bus Terminal and Midtown West
communities, magnet areas for New York’s most destitute. We achieve these successes by
offering point of contact comprehensive services and by maintaining 2 linkage network with
other service providers. These linkages include hospitals, medical and mental health clinics, case
management teams, substance abuse treatment programs, as well as experienced housing and job
placement experts.

b. Provide specific information on all homeless services programs the Proposer has
directed or participated in, and a summary of the types of work performed for the
three (3) years jmmediately preceding the RFP due date. Include the name and
address of the contracting institution, the compensation received, the size, duration
and scope of those programs and the name and telephone number of a current
reference at each of those institutions. Complete Attachment E entitled “Proposer
Reference Form?” to be submitted with your proposal.

OUTREACH
Name of program: AMTRAK Outreach
Contractor: National Railroad Passenger Corporation - AMTRAK
Compensation received: $289,187/year (contract period 10/01/09 — 09/30/12)
Size of program: As required
Duration of program: 2005-2012
Scope of program: Outreach and referral
Contact: Rich Rubel, (212) 630-7240

In January 2005, Urban Pathways began conducting outreach services for AMTRAK.
AMTRAK Outreach was located in Pennsylvania Station in New York City, closest to the 3
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Street and 7™ Avenue entrance. The office was in operation for eight hours a day, 365 days a
year with a schedule that fluctuated between 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Outreach was conducted at least three times daily. The AMTRAK Police were contacted daily to
conduct joint outreach tours. Tdentification in the form of a card or jacket was required when
outreach staff was in the office or on the floor in the station. The AMTRAK Outreach team also
conducted two counts per shift where the team followed a set diagram and counted the number of
individuals encountered who were believed to be homeless.

As a provider of outreach and referral services at Penn Station, Urban Pathways’ AMT RAK
Outreach team saw significant results, specifically in the reduction of the homeless population in
the station. According to the 2012 HOPE Count administered by the New York City Department
of Homeless Services, while there was an overall increase in the homeless population on the
streets and subways around the City, the qumbers of homeless individuals in Penn Station itself
was much lower than in counts done in previous years.

Name of program: Fashion BID Outreach Program

Contractor: Fashion Business Improvement District
Compensation received: $59,846/year (contract period 07/01/13 —06/30/14)
Size of program: As needed

Duration of program: Since 2009

Scope of program: Outreach and engagement

Contact: Anne Bonacum, (212) 764-9600

The Fashion BID team conducts street outreach from 35 Street to 41% Street, covering the area
between 5™ Avenue to o Avenue. The sponsor of the program is the Fashion Business
Improvement District Council, with additional funding through a grant from the Robin Hood
Foundation. The team offers clients referrals to appropriate social services and shelters, thereby
enabling them to leave the Fashion BID area. The team has been operating since July, 20009.
Many of the clients encountered in this program can be found in Penn Station during periods of
the day and evening. The program conducts outreach between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., with the
schedule alternating weekly from a Monday through Saturday schedule one week and a Tuesday
through Friday schedule the following week.

Name of program: Flatiron BID Outreach Program

Contractor: Flatiron 23" Street Business Improvement District
Compensation received: $57,500/year (contract period 07/01/13 — 06/30/14)
Size of program: As needed

Duration of program: Since 2007

Scope of program: Outreach and engagement

Contact: Jennifer Brown, (212) 741-2323

The Flatiron BID Outreach team conducts outreach services from 21% Street to 28™ Street and
from 34d Avenue to 6™ Avenue. The outreach services are funded by the Flatiron/23™ Street
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Partnership Business Improvement District and supplemented through funding from the Robin
Hood Foundation. This district tends to contain some of the most difficult, isolated and
chronically homeless clients in the City of New York, who tend to shift back and forth between
this district and Penn Station. Our experienced staff continually engages this population,
offering referrals to drop-in centers, safe havens, detox facilities, treatment centers, and medical
care. The program operates 21 hours per week and conducts outreach between 7:00 a.m. and
3:00 p.m., three days per week as well as two Saturdays each month.

Near the end of FY13, the Flatiron BID Outreach team saw an increase of clients previously
served come back to the Flatiron area. However, these clients did not return to the street, they
reported they either came to hangout for a few hours and were going back to their program by
the end of the night, or they were just passing through the area. By June, the team also saw a rise
in the number of people with mental illness living on the streets. Some of these clients were
recently discharged from a hospital, such as Bellevue Hospital. The team sometimes found
connecting these clients with services challenging because they had to work through the clients'
mental illness to get them to accept placement. Nevertheless, from July 2012 through June 2013,
the Flatiron BID Outreach team placed 58 clients into the following programs: 1 client into Main
Chance Drop-In Center; 11 clients into the hospital for medical treatment; 2 clients into BRC
Reception Center; 23 clients into the Oliveri Drop-In Center; 3 clients into the Hegeman Safe
Haven; 2 clients at Traveler's Safe Haven; 1 client at the Kenmoor Residence; 1 reconnected
with family; 1 into a private room; 1 client into George Daily House; 5 clients into city shelters;
1 client into Saint Francis Residence; 2 clients into the Residence at Hallet’s Cove; 1 client into
ACI detox; and 3 clients into NYC Rescue Mission.

Name of program: Urban Pathways Manhattan Outreach Consortium
Contractor: Manhattan Outreach Consortium

Compensation received: $395,694 (contract period 08/01/07 ~07/31/13)
Size of program: As needed :

Duration of program: 2007-2013

Scope of program: Outreach and engagement

Contact: Stephan Russo, MOC, (212) 873-6600

Urban Pathways was a participating member of the Manhattan Outreach Consortium, along with
Goddard Riverside, CUCS and Common Ground Community. The primary purpose of this
Outreach program was to house the most service resistant, chronically street homeless clients.
The program targeted individuals who lived on the street continuously, without using shelters for
the past nine months and who have either a history of street homelessness of five years or more,
or who have 24 months of continuous street homelessness. The clients on the caseload included
those with diagnosis of substance abuse, mental disorders and a combination of both. The team
operated 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year, with services that included: case
management; securing entitlements; psychiatric services; and follow-up after placement. MOC
clients were housed in stabilization beds, safe havens and a range of permanent housing which
includes using internal and external options to ensure that our clients received optimum results.
Those clients who did not mest the above-mentioned chronicity requirements were also offered
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services, including referrals and transportation to drop-in centers, shelters, hospitals and
assessment centers.

Urban Pathways® MOC program was also responsible for responding to calls received by New
York City’s 311 hotline system that were related to the homeless population in Manhattan.
When Urban Pathways received a call related to a homeless individual in Manhattan, Urban
Pathways staff dispatched the MOC Outreach team responsible for that catchment area. Once
dispatched, the team investigated, assessed and assisted clients who were in distress. Urban
Pathways also ensured that we reccived a disposition on all calls responded to by other teams.

Name of program: Assessment, Diagnosis and Engagement (ADE)
Contractor: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Compensation received: $174,673/year (contract period 05/01/13 — 04/3 0/14)
Size of program: As needed

Duration of program: Since 1996

Scope of program: Outreach, engagement and assessment

Contact: Gloria Halberstein, (212) 264-8000

In December, 1996, HUD awarded Urban Pathways a grant for the Assessment, Diagnosis and
Engagement (ADE) outreach program. Using the agency’s drop-in center as a base of
operations, the ADE outreach team develops relationships with homeless individuals through
regular contacts and, if possible and appropriate, accompanies them to the agency’s drop-in
center. The outreach team then works with the consumers for a period of transition to services at
the center. Street outreach is done during afternoon and evening hours. Retention of these
difficult to serve consumers is enhanced through the development of additional evening
programming and access to overnight respite beds. At the bed site, a group worker facilitates
rehabilitation and housing-focused group sessions. Generally, the clients become familiar with
the group worker and have developed a trusting relationship with another consistent person who
can help support them through a process of recovery and stability. Clients are also offered a
meal and recreational activities. These resources motivate consumers to continue the difficult
process of entry and adjustment. Utilizing the continuing involvement of the ADE outreach
team member who made the original contact with the consumer, an initial case plan is
undertaken with the consumer by the ADE worker and the case manager to whom the consumer
is assigned on a continuing basis. The ADE team member continues to interact with the
consumer on a less frequent basis during the remainder of the consumer’s stay at the drop-in
center or until referral to an appropriate placement is made.

Name of program: PATH Outreach

Contractor: Port Authority of NY & NJ

Compensation received: $91,730/year (contract period 01/07/13 — 01/06/14)
Size of program: Asneeded

Duration of program: Since 2005
Scope of program: Outreach and referral
Contact: Charlie Trombetta, (201) 216-6450

Lucille Haley, (201) 216-6448
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Since 2005, Urban Pathways has conducted outreach along 6™ Avenue in the PATH train
stations on the West Side of Manhattan from 33™ Street South to Christopher Street. Homeless
individuals tend to gravitate to these stations as they are warm, safe and clean. The program
operates from October to March, seven days a week from 12:00 am. to 8:00 am. The PATH
team consists of a team leader and case manager who canvass the subway stations in search of
homeless men and women whom they can engage and link to services. Since FY 2011, the
PATH team has contacted over 600 clients and linked them to numerous services, including
detox, drop-in centers, safe havens, soup kitchens, and emergency medical services for medical
and psychiatric treatment.

Name of program: Newark Airport Outreach Program

Contractor: Port Authority of NY & NJ

Compensation received: $208,353/year (contract period 12/10/12 — 12/09/14)
Size of program: As needed

Duration of program: Since December, 2012

Scope of program: Outreach and referral

Contact: Lucille Haley, (201) 216-6448

In December 2012, Urban Pathways was awarded a contract to provide outreach and referral
services at Newark Liberty International Airport. The Newark Airport Outreach Program
provides outreach and referral services to homeless men and women at Newark Liberty
International Airport, with the goal of reducing the numbers of homeless persons taking shelter
at the airport. Outreach workers canvass inside and outside areas, approaching homeless
individuals they encounter. Outreach workers then assess, refer and/or transport these
individuals to appropriate services, including housing, detoxification and medical services. The
outreach staff is in communication with Newark Liberty Airport personnel and Port Authority
Police for additional referrals of homeless individuals. Inside Newark Liberty Airport, outreach
workers place special emphasis on canvassing seating, stairwells, parking areas, and remote
locations where homeless people tend to congregate. A member of the team transports the
homeless individuals to drop-in centers, shelters, hospitals, detoxification programs and other
referral sites.

Since January, 2013, the outreach team has placed:

o Fifty clients into a transitional or emergency shelter program

e Fourteen clients into permanent housing

e Eight clients were placed in a detoxification program

o Twenty clients were transported by EMS to the hospital for medical or mental health
treatment.

Outreach staff also helped clients complete their entitlement applications and get their benefits.
Fifty-four applications were completed in total for the following types of benefits:
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e One fixed income application (VA/SSI/SSD)

o Twelve food stamps applications

e Seven public assistance (cash assistance) applications
e Ten Medicaid/Medicare applications

e Ten applications for legal assistance with entitlements
e Twelve applications for identification

e Two applications for birth certificates

The outreach team has made a connection with a few programs that service the homeless,
substance abuse, and mentally ill populations in New Jersey, including:

e The Mobile Crisis Team at Beth Israel Hospital: This team coordinated with the outreach
team to get clients to the hospital for psychiatric treatment. One such client was
transferred to the care of an intensive case management team (ICM) and placed in
temporary housing.

e The Mental Health Association of Essex County: Helped coordinate with the outreach
team to place clients in apartments in Montclair, New Jersey.

e Department of Welfare at 18 Rector Street: Staff from Rector Street have assisted several
clients with acquiring public assistance and shelter placement.

Most of the homeless men and women that come through the airport are just passing through.
They are not looking to permanently settle at the airport. There are, however, a group of eleven
clients who are encountered by the outreach team daily, but are resistant to accepting services.
Of the eleven clients:

e Tive are starting to talk with team about entitlements and housing.

e Two were referred to Community Action for adult protection services.

e One comes to the terminal at night but leaves before police shift change in the morning.

e Three remain resistant to services and are usually escorted out of the terminals by police
officers.

DROP-IN CENTER

Urban Pathways operates the Antonio G. Olivieri Drop-In Center. At Olivieri, homeless adults
have access to 24-hour shelter, meals, clothing, showers and rehabilitation and recovery
programs. The drop-in center has established an extensive multiservice network of providers to
ensure that consumers have access to a wide range of services including: emergency overnight
shelter beds; outpatient drug and alcohol treatment programs; outpatient psychiatric treatment
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programs; and off-site vocational assessment and training. Supplemental funding through
DOHMH and HUD has allowed for the development and implementation of enhanced services,
specifically designed to facilitate housing placement and permanency, and at the same time
address the needs of the clients diagnosed with serious and persistent mental illness, as well as
individuals in recovery from substance abuse and addictions.

Name of program: Antonio G. Olivieri Drop-In Center

Contractor: DHS, HUD

Compensation received: $2,593,892/yr. — DHS (contract period 07/01/12 — 06/30/15);
$151,860/yr. — HUD (contract period 10/01/13 — 09/30/14)

Size of program: Up to 90 people per day

Duration of program: Since 1980

Scope of program: Emergency services, frontline multiservice center
Contact: Jody Rudin, DHS, (212) 361-0615

Gloria Halberstein, HUD, (212) 264-8000

In 1980, Urban Pathways opened the Antonio G. Olivieri Drop-In Center, which is located at 257
West 30® Street in Manhattan. In FY 2009, the Center provided drop-in services to
approximately 961 women. These services include a meal, shower, and a chair to sleep in
overnight. Of these clients, approximately 240 clients opted to receive case management, which
is an intensive array of services focused on helping clients obtain stability and housing,.

The drop-in center was originally developed to service only women. However, since July 1,
2009, the Center services both men and women. The Center operates during the day and only
admits clients willing to receive case management services and housing placement. The Center
also links each client with a bed located at one of our respite bed partnership sites.

As part of the case management services, staff work closely with all clients to help them obtain
housing. During their stay at the Center, case managers work with the clients to ensure that
clients secure benefits and entitlements assistance and are linked with other service providers.

SAFE HAVENS
Name of program: Travelers Hotel
Contractor: DHS, HUD

Compensation received: $1,403,300/yr. — DHS (contract period 07/01/13 — 06/30/17),
$151,860/yr. - HUD (contract pCI‘lOd 10/01/13 — 09/30/14)

Size of program: . 36 consumers

Duration of program: Since 1982

Scope of program: Safe haven

Contact: Jody Rudin, DHS, (212) 361-0615

Gloria Halberstein, HUD, (212) 264-8000

The Travelers Hotel, located at 274 West 40™ Street, Manhattan, is a safe haven, serving 36
chronically homeless men. Travelers Hotel transitioned into a safe haven in July, 2007 to meet
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the increasing need of the service resistant, chronically homeless men who refused to seek
housing in a traditional shelter. A safe haven is transitional housing; however, the absence of
barriers to entry has made it an appealing choice of shelter. This low-threshold environment puts
minimal requirements on clients. There are no requirements to be sober or drug-free, and there
are no curfews. This environment adds to the attractiveness of the program. Services on-site
include food, psychiatric and medical care, daily living skills, entitlement and budget counseling,
and recreational activities. The services are provided all with the intention of stabilizing and
finding permanent housing for the client.

All Travelers’ residents have to meet criteria for chronic homelessness. Given this, Travelers
Hotel has tailored its services to address the needs of clients, many of whom have been
chronically homeless for many years, are mentally ill and are unfamiliar with living in a
structured environment. The average length of street homelessness for current safe haven clients
is 10 years. Social service staff have developed programming to address a two-pronged
objective: helping clients acclimate themselves to the norms of living indoors, as well as
locating permanent housing. Services at Travelers Hotel include helping clients address basic
needs, such as food, shelter and addressing their long-ignored physical and mental health issues.
The focus, however, remains on the long-term goal of helping clients acquire permanent housing.

Name of program: Hegeman Safe Haven

Contractor: DHS

Compensation received: $1,856,937/year (contract period 07/01/09 — 06/30/14)
Size of program: 55 consumers

Duration of program: Since 2010

Scope of program: Safe haven

Contact: Jody Rudin, DHS, (212) 361-06 15

Located in East New York, Hegeman is a 55 bed safe haven which opened in May of 2010.
Hegeman serves chronically homeless single adult men and women as well as couples who have
typically refused to enter the traditional shelter system. Programming is designed to reach
individuals by providing a low threshold-housing environment, in an apartment-like setting. The
safe haven setting offers a variety of services - case management, three meals daily, group
programming, medical and psychiatric care.

PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

Name of program: Scattered Site

Contractor: ‘ OMH, DOHMH ’ ' ‘

Compensation received: $782,622/yr. — OMH (contract period 07/01/10 — 06/30/15);
$457,200/yr. — DOHMH (contract period 07/01/13 —06/30/16)

Size of program: 100 residents

Duration of program: Since 2008

Scope of program: Permanent supported housing

Contact: Joseph Maloney, OMH, (212) 330-6370

Laura Grund, DOHMH, (212) 219-0810
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Urban Pathways® Scattered Site Program has 80 units. Twenty-three of the units funded by
DOHMH are set aside for the street homeless who are active substance abusers, and three units
are reserved for young adults, ages 18 to 25. Thirteen of the 54 units funded by OMH have been
designated for those transitioning out of psychiatric centers. The remaining OMH units are set
aside for the chronically homeless who have been diagnosed with a mental illness. The scattered
site units are located in the Bronx and Manhattan, with a few sited in Brooklyn.

Each client lives in a one-bedroom apartment or two-bedroom apartment and is assigned to a
case manager to assist them in areas of independent living. This may include direct assistance in
areas such as securing and maintaining entitlements and benefits, money and medication
management and advice related to unit maintenance. Case managers help the clients facilitate
structures and routine, encourage socialization opportunities and general counseling. Referrals
are also made to health, dental and mental health care, and community-based services such as
club houses, day treatment facilities and vocational programming. Service needs change as
residents gain increased skills and greater levels of self-sufficiency.

Name of program: Cluster House

Contractor: OMH, HUD

Compensation received: $710,000/yr. — OMH (contract period 07/01/12 — 06/30/1 5);
$163,951/yr. — HUD (contract period 03/01/14 — 02/28/15)

Size of program: 48 residents

Duration of program: 1989 to January, 2011; currently closed for renovations
Scope of program: Permanent supportive housing

Contact: Joseph Maloney, OMH, (212) 330-6370

Gloria Halberstein, HUD, (212) 264-8000

Cluster House, located at 904 Amsterdam Avenue in Manhattan, is a community residence for
formerly homeless mentally ill and dually diagnosed women. Cluster House was one of the first
residences of its kind developed through the 1990 NY/NY Agreement. The residence provides a
safe, caring environment with a network of services to prevent hospitalization and a return to
homelessness. Cluster House residents each have their own room and receive three meals a day.
Operating costs are partially covered through a program fee paid by residents from their federal
Supplemental Security Income. The building is closed while undergoing renovations which will
increase the population served to 52 residents. It is expected to reopen in March, 2014.

Comprehensive clinical services include an on-site psychiatrist and monitoring of psychotropic
medications by a Registered Professional Nurse. A skilled social service staff employs
individual and group modalities in working with residents.. Cluster House offers a wide variety
of rehabilitative activities. Rehabilitative groups include interpersonal skills, health and personal
care, medication management, exercise, nutrition, etc.

Name of program: Ivan Shapiro House

Contractor: OMH, HUD

Compensation received: $625,964/yr. — OMH (contract period 07/01/10 — 06/30/1 5);
$367,797/yr. — HUD (contract period 10/01/13 — 09/30/14)
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Size of program: 55 residents

Duration of program: Since 1997
Scope of program: Permanent supportive housing
Contact: Joseph Maloney, OMH, (212) 330-6370

Gloria Halberstein, HUD, (212) 264-8000

Ivan Shapiro House, a commumty residence for formerly homeless mentally ill men and women,
located at 459 West 46™ Street in Manhattan, opened in March of 1997. The prototype design
was developed through a cooperative effort sponsored by OMH and the Corporation for
Supportive Housing and includes 55 efficiency units with kitchenettes and private bathrooms, a
large garden, spacious activity rooms and lounges on each floor. Supportive services include
case management, mental health counseling, medication monitoring, substance abuse services, a
vocational program and banking and money management. A meal plan is also available.

Name of program: Hughes House

Contractor: OMH

Compensation received: $732,145 (contract period 07/10/10 — 06/30/15)
Size of program: 55 residents

Duration of program: Since November, 2011

Scope of program: Permanent supportive housing

Contact: Joseph Maloney, OMH, (212) 330-6370

Hughes House opened in November, 2011 and is a 55 unit supportive housing program located at
the corner of Hughes and Tremont Avenues in the Tremont section of the Bronx. It is a five-
storied building with 11 self-sufficient studio units on each floor. Each fully furnished apartment
offers a private bathroom and kitchen with granite countertops. Shared spaces include a
community dining area, congregate lounges, a computer lab, and a fully landscaped enclosed
outdoor patio. Supportive services include case management, mental health counseling,
medication monitoring, substance abuse services, a vocational program and banking and money
management. A meal plan is also available.

Name of program: The Residence at Hallet’s Cove

Contractor: OMH

Compensation received: $772,750/ yr. (contract period 09/01/12 — 06/30/15)
Size of program: 50 residents

Duration of program: Since November, 2012

Scope of program:. _ Permanent supportive housing

Contact: Joseph Maloney, OMH, (212) 330- 6370

In November 2012, The Residence at Hallet’s Cove, a 50-unit OMH licensed CR/SRO, opened
in the Astoria section of Queens. This tax credit financed building was fully occupied by March
31, 2013. Consistent with Urban Pathways’ commitment to providing housing for the neediest .
of New York’s disabled citizens, The Residence at Hallet’s Cove serves NY/NY III Populations
A and B. The residents are referred by DHS for the Population A units and by Creedmoor
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Psychiatric Center for the Population B beds. The supportive services available to the residents
at Hallet’s Cove are similar to the services offered at ISH and Hughes House.

Name of program: 53" Street Apartments

Contractor: OMH

Compensation received: $289,860/yr. — OMH (contract period 07/01/13 ~ 06/30/ 15) (OMH)
Size of program: 13 residents

Duration of program: Since May, 2013
Scope of program: Permanent supportive housing ,
Contact: Joseph Maloney, OMH, (2120 330-6370

In May 2013, Urban Pathways opened 13 additional housing units in Midtown Manhattan.
Known as the 53" Street Apartments, this program this program serves formerly homeless,
mentally ill adults who are capable of living more independently in the community. The 53
Street Apartments also received tax-credit financing for development purposes.

VOCATIONAL TRAINING
Name of program: UPwards
Contractor: DOHMH
Compensation received: $353,607/yr. (contract period 07/01/11 — 06/30/14)
Size of program: 4 As needed, agency-wide
Duration of program: Since 1996
Scope of program: Vocational training, placement, coaching
Contact: Beth Bstrine, DOHMH, (212) 219-5456

The UPwards program provides vocational and pre-vocational services using four tiers, which
support consumers who have never worked and those who are returning to the workforce after a
long absence, and those with an intermittent and sporadic work history. Clients engage in a
variety of skills training, supportive counseling, and “hands-on” experiences that are provided in
a vocational context to encourage individuals to grow and move towards independence.
Practical experiences gained in workplace settings are used to address individuals’ psychosocial
development as well as issues of adequacy, competency, accomplishment, self-awareness, social
interactions, and accountability. Through a four-tier system, UPwards moves consumers from
training to supported and competitive employment. During competitive employment, for as long
as it is needed, a consumer is able to meet regularly with the Job Coach to ensure continued
- participation in the workforce. - - -

c. Provide the quantitative and qualitative indices by which the Proposer’s programs’
effectiveness were measured for the programs in (b.) above.

Urban Pathways has a sophisticated and detailed level of data collection and analysis for
reporting purposes that measure program effectiveness. This standardized, agency-wide monthly
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reporting format includes both quantitative and qualitative indices. The Urban Pathways
monthly statistical report incorporates the following data:

Consumer information:

Gender

Age

Ethnicity

Contact location (outreach)
Educational background
Source(s) of income/benefits
Primary diagnostic categories
Length of time homeless

Program services:

Attendance

Partnership beds (drop-ins)
Meals (drop-ins, residences)
Showers (drop-ins)
Counseling sessions

Ex-Offender status

Veteran status

Abuse history

Marital status

Primary language
Chronically homeless status
Parental status

Medication monitoring
Recreational groups
Therapeutic groups
Placements

Referrals

Urban Pathways has contracted with Foothold Technology to utilize their AWARDS program.
This program is very detailed tracking and case management software, which has enabled us to
capture multitudes of data. Our entire monthly statistics report is customized on AWARDS so
that all of our reports are produced at the push of a button. All of our demographic information
is currently collected and stored in the AWARDS database.

This standardized quantitative data is also complemented by qualitative information and
narratives reported by the sites of Urban Pathways on a monthly basis. Such qualitative
information and narratives include consumer case summaries, fire drill reports, staffing patterns,
audit visits and other independent inspections by a third party (Callahan Inspections), consumers
success stories and physical plan updates.

In addition to the agency-wide standardized outcome-based reporting above, Urban Pathways
also has a series of quarterly and monthly meetings:

Program Director’s Meeting

A monthly meeting of the Program Directors and Senior staff to discuss topical site issues such
~ as sharing updates and changes, brainstorm on pressing concerns, monitor activities of the
program and participate in planning for the agency.

Consumer Advisory Board

Consumers meet with the Executive Director on a bi-monthly basis to provide feedback on
program and agency issues, exchange ideas and empower consumers to express their views to
top leadership and offer suggestions for change.
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Board of Directors Meeting

Meets a minimum of six times a year to discuss the latest agency developments and to consider
forms of action going forward. This leadership body provides oversight of the financial and
operational health of the agency and is updated on agency activities related to finance,
fundraising, programming, consumers and political trends in the environment which may affect
the agency.

Community Advisory Council

This bi-monthly meeting is composed of individuals in leadership positions in the communities
surrounding Urban Pathways’ program sites. The members bring new perspectives and expertise
to the agency, improving and broadening its offectiveness. It also raises concerns of the
communities in relationship to agency programs and consumers and helps to problem-solve
common problems experienced by all in these localities. Bringing the community in on the
operations, goals and philosophies of the agency results in a collaborative effort in the
communities where programs reside.

Quality Improvement Committee

This committee, led by the Deputy Executive Director and senior team members from each site,
meets quarterly to develop, review and monitor quality improvement mechanisms at all of our
programs. Some of the items discussed are the findings of our peer reviews and quality
improvement committee meetings.

Incident Review Committee

There is an agency-wide quarterly incident review committee meeting with Senior staff and
Program Directors from each site. Reportable critical incidents are reviewed, followed by a
discussion, findings, and recommendations. All recommendations are followed up at the next
quarterly meeting. This form allows for the committee to implement programming oOr
operational changes to prevent future incidents where applicable, to assist each other in
controlling incidents, and meets funder requirements for such oversight.

d. Provide a summary of Proposer’s current and planned workload. List all new
contracts the Proposer is currently seeking.

Urban Pathways’ current workload can be found in our response to question 4(b) above. The
planned workload is as follows:

1344 Clinton Avenue

The proposed supportive housing site at 1342-46 Clinton Avenue, Bronx, New York, Block 2934
Lots 18, 19, 20, 22, and 54 can yield approximately 80 studio apartments. Because of the critical
need for affordable housing, our proposal will include a plan to develop and design up to 40% of
these units to address unmet housing needs in the community. The workforce affordable housing
units will be targeted at families and individuals with incomes of up to 60% of the area median
income (AMI). The special needs units will be reserved for individuals who quality under the
New York, New York III supportive housing program, with a preference for disabled veterans.
Rents for the special needs population will be covered through a combination of SSI and a
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subsidy from the New York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH). The
project is scheduled to be completed in 2014.

316 East 162" Street

The proposed supportive housing site at 316 East 162™ Street, Bronx, New York, will yield
approximately 80 studio apartments. Approximately 30% of these units will be used to address
unmet housing needs in the community. The workforce affordable housing units will be targeted
at families and individuals with incomes of up to 60% of AML We will work with the
Community Advisory Board to identify the populations that would be best served by these
additional units. The special needs units will be reserved for individuals who quality under the
New York, New York II supportive housing program, with a preference for disabled veterans.

e. Provide evidence of Proposer’s ability to operate PABT/LTs program in a
professional and timely manner. :

Urban Pathways has been working with homeless single women and men for over 30 years. The
agency has gained the distinction of being reco gnized as a pioneer by those in the field, and has
been selected to implement and model programs. At the same time, Urban Pathways has often
provided program evaluation instruments, record-keeping protocols, and policies and procedures
to funding sources that recommend them to other providers as examples of highly professional
work.

Early on, Urban Pathways developed special expertise to work with homeless adults with mental
illness and substance abuse, many of whom are chronically homeless. Such persons may suffer
from multiple diagnoses and also have suffered abuse or violence, low self-esteem, and
disconnection from others through long-term experiences with institutions such as hospitals,
foster care, and prisons. Chronic unemployment and limited education also contribute to the
challenge of maintaining stable housing. Aging and medical problems may have further
contributed to the problems of homelessness. Over the years, enhanced strategies and programs
have been I place to engage, motivate, and retain formerly homeless men and women. Urban
Pathways’ staff is highly trained and ready to handle a unique, often complex, mix of problems
in each and every individual homeless person, including those most disaffiliated from traditional
freatments.

Additionally, Urban Pathways is uniquely positioned to be able to fully staff and to begin
operating within thirty (30) days of the contract award. The full-time positions would be staffed
by seasoned outreach workers currently on staff. Tt should also be noted that there is the ability
to recruit from within since we have currently on staff over 45 individuals on our outreach teams,
" anumber of whom work only on-call and would be interested in full-time employment.

f. The Proposer shall provide financial documentation as required in Section 4,
Financial Information, which will demonstrate the Proposer’s financial

qualifications and ability to perform this Contract.

The requested documentation is included as Attachment 6.
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s. Staffing Management

The Proposer shall submit a Contractor Identity Check/Background Screening Plan, which
demonstrates how the Proposer will ensure that only employees who were successfully
prescreened and properly credentialed perform the services herein. This Plan shall be
applicable to all years of the Contract and shall include, but not be limited to, the
following:

The length of time researched for the identity check/background screening on new
hires, which shall be at a minimum of 10 years of employment history or verification
of what an employee documented they have done in the last 10 years preceding the
date of the investigation, resources utilized to perform this, and the frequency at
which it is performed on current employees.

It is the policy of Urban Pathways to conduct an identity check and background screening on
every prospective employee, student, intern and individual contractor (hereafter referred to as
“prospective employees and volunteers™), regardless of the position for which they are applying.
This process is conducted to verify the accuracy of the employment history, educational and
licensing credentials, and criminal history information provided by the applicant.

Urban Pathways’ application for employment requires applicants to disclose employment
history, educational and licensing credentials, references, and information regarding felony
and/or misdemeanor convictions. All submitted information is thoroughly checked and verified
by human resources staff. A minimum of ten (10) years of employment history is verified. A
minimum of three (3) references are secured by human resources staff, of which at least two (2)
must be from past employers. Educational credentials are verified by viewing original diplomas,
transcripts, and/or other official documentation. '

All criminal background checks are conducted in compliance with Federal, State and City laws,
regulations and statutes, as applicable. All background checks will be conducted through a Port
Authority approved provider. Information obtained will only be used as part of the employment

.y 3 7 tndinl 11 4o TTivin s T magmtremnma TY min micdans i d
process and kept strictly confidential in the Human Resources Department.

Only Authorized Persons (APs) are authorized to request, receive and review criminal history
information. The agency’s three APs are the Director of Human Resources, Human Resources
Generalist, and Human Resources Assistant, in accordance with Federal, State, and City laws
and regulations. However, criminal history information may be disclosed by the APs to other
parties who are directly participating in any decision with regard to such subject party to which
this information isrelevant. The APs and any -other person to whom such criminal history is
disclosed shall keep this information strictly confidential. Documentation related to criminal
history information, including consent forms, criminal history letters, and other related
documents shall be kept in a locked file cabinet in the Director of Human Resources’ office.

Application Process

1. The Human Resources Department representative will inform the prospective employee
or volunteer in writing that it is the policy of Urban Pathways to request a check of
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his/her State and national criminal history information and review the results of such

check.

2. The prospective employee or volunteer must then sign and submit the Applicant Consent
Form to the APs before a criminal background check is conducted.

Verification Process
Upon successful completion of the application process, the APs view the criminal history record
information provided by the criminal background check vendor agency.

1. An applicant will not be denied employment or volunteer assignment because
he/she has been previously convicted of one or more criminal offense(s) unless:

a. There is a direct relationship between one or more of the previous criminal
offenses and the specific employment sought; or

b. The granting of employment would involve an unreasonable risk to
property or to the safety/welfare of specific individuals or the general
public.

2. In making a conviction-based employment decision, consideration will be given
to:

a. Public policy encouraging employment of ex-convicts;

b. Duties necessary to the position;

c. Time since offense occurred;

d. Age of the person at the time of the offense;

e. Seriousness of the offense;

f Rehabilitation or good conduct of the applicant since the offense; and

g. The interest of Urban Pathways in protecting the welfare of clients and/or
property.

3. Urban Pathways shall not temporarily approve a prospective employee or
volunteer while the results of the criminal history record check are pending,
unless explicitly authorized by the Director of Human Resources or the Executive
Director.

Recordkeeping
The APs establish, maintain and keep current a record of:

1. A current roster of employees and list of staffing assignments;

2. A current roster of volunteers;

3. Nares of all persons for whom a request for a criminal background history was
submitted, identifying whether the person was applying for an employment or
volunteer position,

4. A copy of each prospective employee or volunteer signed informed consent form
and the results of the criminal background history check; and

5. A record identifying whether such individual was hired or permitted to engage in

volunteer services, the position he/she holds, and any limitations placed on such
employment or service.
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Such records will be maintained in a locked file cabinet in the Director of Human Resources’
office.

Information necessary to demonstrate compliance with related regulations and laws will be
maintained for at least 6 years after which the person ceases to be a subject individual.

Disposal of the criminal history information shall be performed in a manner that ensures the
confidentiality of the information.

6. Background Check Plan

The Proposer shall submit risk assessment and succession plans to the Contractor and the
Port Authority, that assess the business risk in taking on the significant amount of new
work that will be required under this Contract. The risk assessment plan should take into
account all work currently under contract, as well as work that is under contract to
companies which the Proposer owns, controls or has an interest.

The Proposer shall provide any other information that is related to the requirements in this
Section (Section F), that the Proposer believes would be helpful to the Port Authority in the
evaluation of its proposal.

Urban Pathways incorporate new programs quickly and seamlessly into our administrative
structure. 'We are uniquely positioned to be able to fully staff and to begin operating within
thirty (30) days of the contract award. We intend to staff PABT/LT according to the staffing
plan required in the RFP. The full-time positions would be staffed by seasoned outreach workers
currently on staff. There is the ability to recruit from within since we have currently on staff
over 45 employees in our outreach programs, a number of whom work only on-call and would be
interested in full-time employment. Should this plan need to be modified, we have the resources
to accommodate any programmatic changes.

Acknowledoment of Addenda

Addenda are attached hereto as Attachment 7.
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ATTACHMENT A-AGREEMENT ON TERMS OF DISCUSSION

The Port Authority’s receipt or discussion of any information (including information contained in any
proposal, vendor qualification, ideas, models, drawings, or other material communicated or exhibited
by us or on our behalf) shall not impose any obligations whatsoever on the Port Authority or entitle us
to any compensation therefor (except to the extent specifically provided in such written agreement, if
any, as may be entered into between the Port Authority and us). Any such information given to the
Port Authority before, with or after this Agreement on Terms of Discussion (“Agreement”), either
orally or in writing, is not given in confidence. Such information may be used, or disclosed to others,
for any purpose at any time without obligation or compensation and without liability of any kind
whatsoever. Any statement which is inconsistent with this Agreement, whether made as part of or in
connection with this Agreement, shall be void and of no effect. This Agreement is not intended,
however, to grant to the Port Authority rights to any matter, which is the subject of valid existing or
potential letters patent. The foregoing applies to any information, whether or not given at the
invitation of the Authority. L

Notwithstanding the above, and without assuming any legal obhgatlon the Port Authority will employ
reasonable efforts, subject to the provisions of the Port Authority Freedom of Information Code and
Procedure adopted by the Port Authority’s Board of Commissioners on March 29, 2012, which may be
found on the Port Authority website at: http://www.panynj.gov/corporate-information/pdf/foi-code.pdf,
not to disclose to any competitor of the undersigned, information submitted which are trade secrets or
is maintained for the regulation or supervision of commercial enterprise which, if disclosed, would
cause injury to the competitive position of the enterprise, and which information is identified by the
Proposer as proprietary, as more fully set forth in the Freedom of Information (FOI) Code, which may
be disclosed by the undersigned to the Port Authority as part of or in connection with the submission of
a proposal.
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PART II - COST PROPOSAL FORM
THREE YEAR CONTRACT PRICE

LABOR COSTS FOR MOBILE HOMELESS OUTREACH TEAM MEMEER
Provide homeless otitreach, transportation and referral services sixteen (16) hours per day, 365 days.

per year. Hours of work are 6:00 am —2:00 pm and 3:00 pm — 11:00 pm..

' EST. HOURS HOURLY EST. ANNUAL
STAFF RATE COST
POSITIONS e ‘
PROGRAM 2920 X | e
MONITOR . 21,4 g/ &3 v
6 a.m.-2 p.m.

SS CASE 2920 x| = A2
WORKER | | 26 65 78,64

6a.m-2 pm.
PROGRAM 2920 x| . .= A3
MONITOR | . 35T 985

3 pm.- 11 pam,
§S CASE. 2520 b'e =t ;

WORKER L v 95 78 69y
3 p.m.~ 11 pom.,

A4

\ s
Total Estimated Yearly Labor Cost ~ § 27 dals (A5) x 3 years = SM(AQ
(Sum ATH+A2+A3+AS)

L. CHARGE FOR ONE VAN (THREE YEAR CONTRACT PRICE)

‘ -~
*Monthly Charge $ _ // 55 4 x36months=9$___ 55, vl 7 AD
: Total Van charpe-

*Van charge shall include all gssociated costs related to the use of the van including, but not lintited to,
insurance, gasoline, leasing costs, tolls and maintenance. '

. MONTHLY MANAGEMENTFEE § 5/ 450 | somontas= s 209, 782 (AS)
» MONTHLY FEE TOTAL MANAGEMENT FEE

The Management Fee shall be full compensation for the cost of the Management Representative, and general
conifract management and supervision, including but not limited to access to beds, home office expenses,
overhead, profit, equipment not furnished by Port Authority, all other expenses . in connection with the
performance of this Contract, whether or not presently foreseen or foreseeable, other than those charges
specifically included above. Please note that the overhead rate shall not inclnde any charges included in Part
I above. :

) RE3£F 2

, (A%
(Sum of AG+A7+AS)

HL ESTIMATED TOTAL THREE YEAR CONTRACT PRICE
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Rev. 6/25/13 (PA RFP)



PART II - COST PROPOSAL FORM
RAPID RESPONSE (AS NEEDED) - THREE, YEAR CONTRACT PRICE
LABOR COSTS FOR MOBILE OUTREACH TEAM
The Contractor shall provide a Rapid Response service on an as needed basis. When providing
Rapid Response setvice; the homeless outreach team member must respond to all requests for
“Rapid Response” by the Port Authority within 60 minutes of notification, Rapid Response shall be
available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, including holidays

Labor costs minimmm of 4 hours up to maximum of 8 hours:

STAFF HOURLY
| POSITIONS RATE
PROGRAM |[x

MONITOR - 3, e

Social Services X
Case Worker 26, ‘7-;

NOTE: Provide rates as tequested above. Work may be requested at the sole discretion of the

Contract Manager at any tire during the term of the Contract, No work will be started without prior
authorization. No work is guaranteed, - ‘
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ATTACHMENT E - PROPOSER REFERENCE FORM

Name of Proposer;_(_/¢z=7n| %y/m% AN

Please provide a list of references on the firm’s performance of similar work within the last three
years, including all current contracts. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Include the following information for each reference:

Customer Name: 7Zgrp0n| ZSED  FFF2 Srems AL\ EL3477
Address; 27 sy L7 Srzeer, Ut s, New Yare NY oo
Contact Name and Title: « ZBninze= Bff;w/\l o) e LTl

Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: //’?}//"») Tt BBID — -z //’%//”5 T - A A~
Contract date(s). Sy s 2707

Contract cost:_& 57, 2D, /2.

Description of work:

SEE TnitHES.

~ Customer Name: New oy sz Norzonk . Ehesets /%Uf’—\
Address: ezt Limesr~ Trreeatitonie. M empes (INGTm 2. By, 7, Nezdsnr. NI 0‘7//91
Contact Name and Title: /437  Teon] 720*744—/#1\0 osrmsr, ' Ws\/@ Crstepmyrsai
Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: /72 %/ a6 ——77 /97%) TR = FIBT -+

Contract cost: # 5% =s53 N2
Description of Work: ’

Customer Name: ?6‘77—% »

Address: A, Javsgt _z;y e | SV SO 7552557’ Oy NI~ 07200
Contact Name and Title: /2 e /#)W S s -~V o= o A

Phone and Fax Numbers of Contact: / MA Ao = D ey

Contract date (s): “/rvles AOD

Contract cost: @ G/, 720 /y,z

Description of work: % A7 .
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ATTACHMENT E — PROPOSER REFERENCE FORM

Description of Work

Flatiron BID, 23™ Street Partnership

The Flatiron team conducts outreach services from 21% to 28% Street and from Third Avenue to
Sixth Avenue. The outreach services are funded by the Flatiron/23™ Street Partnership Business
Improvement District. This District tends to contain some of the most difficult, isolated chronic
clients in the City of New York, who tend to shift back and forth between this District and Penn
Station. Our very experienced staff continually engages this population, offering referrals to
drop-in centers, safe havens, detox facilities, treatment centers, and medical care. The team’s
work resulted in 24 placements over the last year. The program conducts outreach between 7:00
am. and 3:00 p.m., three days per week. In addition, the program provides outreach services on
two Saturdays during the month. '

Newark International Airport (EWR)

Funded by The Port Authority of NY & NJ, EWR is the newest outreach program to come under
Urban Pathways’ corporate umbrella. The EWR team conducts outreach in the terminals and
parking lots of Newark International Airport in New Jersey. The airport attracts many of the
states homeless population because of its remote location; clients can get food, bathe, and sleep
without really being bothered by others. When the outreach team started in January, 2013, they
engaged and placed many of the airports' chronically homeless and noticeable clients.

PATH

The PATH program staff covers outreach along 6% Avenue in the PATH train stations on the
West side of Manhattan from 33™ Street south to Christopher Street. Homeless individuals tend
to gravitate to these stations as they are warm and clean. Thus, the PATH Outreach team
creatively engages many of these people and removes them from the station by providing
transportation to drop-in centers, shelters, hospitals, and other appropriate facilities. The PATH

o e

Outreach program works closely with the police and communicates with them on a daily basis.
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ATTACHMENT H - CERTIFIED ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE
PRODUCTS/PRACTICES

Proposer Name: (i 7257 WSS Date: | 0//’ / ?///74

In line with the Port Authority’s efforts to promote products and practices which reduce our impact on the
environment and human health, Proposers are encouraged to provide information regarding their
environmentally. preferable/sustainable business practices as they relate to this contract wherever possible.
Proposers must complete this form and submit it with their response, if appropriate. Proposers must submit
appropriate documentation to support the items for which the Proposer indicates a “Yes” and present this
documentation in the proper sequence of this Attachment. :

1. ~ Packaging : .

Has the Proposer implemented any of the following environmental initiatives? (A checkmark indicates “Yes”)
____Use of corrugated materials that exceed the EPA recommended post-consumer recycled content

K _[ Use of other packaging materials that contain recycled content and are recyclable in most local programs
- Promotes waste prevention and source reduction by reducing the extent of the packaging and/or offering
packaging take-back services, or shipping carton return :

) Reduces or eliminates materials which have been bleached with chlorine or chlorine derivatives

____ Eliminates any packaging that may contain polyvinyl chloride (PVC), or polystyrene or heavy metals

If yes, a description of the practices being followed must be included with the submission.

2. Business Practices / Operations / Manufacturing

Does the Proposer engage in practices that serve to reduce or minimize an impact to the environment, including, but '

not necessarily limited to, the following items? (A checkmark indicates “Yes”)

Recycles materials in the warehouse or other operations - :
____ Use of alternative fuel vehicles or vehicles equipped with diesel emission control devices for delivery or
transportation purposes ‘
_-___/ Use of energy efficient office equipment or signage or the incorporation of green building design elements
" Use of recycled paper (that meets federal specifications) in their marketing and/or resource materials

Other sustainable initiative

If yes, a description of the practices being followed must be included with the submission.

3. Training and Education | .
Does the Proposer conduct/offer a program to train or inform customers and employees of the environmental benefits
of the products to be offered under-this contract, and/or does the Proposer conduct environmental training of its own
staff?

[] Yes [N If yes, Proposer must attach a description of the training offered and the specific
criteria targeted by the training. '

4. Certifications

Has the Proposer or any of its manufacturers and/or subcontractors obtained any of the following product / industry -

certifications? (A checkmark indicates “Yes”) :

IS0 14000 or adopted some other equivalent environmental managetent system

"~ Other industry environmental standards (where applicable), such as the CERES principles, LEED Certification,
C2C Protocol, Responsible Care Codes of Practice or other similar standards ‘ ‘ .

____ Third Party product certifications such as Green Seal, Scientific Certification Systems, Smartwood, etc.

If yes, Proposers must attach copiés of the certificates obtained.

5. Other Environmental Criteria
Proposers are encouraged to Tespond to criteria specifically indicated in this RFP as “Management Approach” (and
. attach the appropriate documentation) to receive consideration in the evaluation.

I hereby certify, under penalty of the law that the above statements are true and correct,
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Urban Pathways
Organizational Chart




ATTACHMENT 2

OUTREACH TEAM MEMBERS’ RESUMES



' Lisa Lombardi, L.M.S.W.

Exemption (1)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Urban Pathways, New York, NY | 2009-Present

DEPUTY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Direct oversight of all programs and supervises all Program Directors
Ensures program compliance with agency standards and government contracts, laws and regulations
Coordinate agency responses to RFPs
Review and approval of program budgets and modifications :
Oversight of contracts for leases, contractors and purchases; review and approve bids.
Coordination and approval of agency training program
Supervision and management of programs that require coordination between programs and other
agencies
Oversight of the Wellness Self Management model of Urban pathways

HELP USA-Central Office, New York, NY | 1999-2009
VICE PRESIDENT

Capture significant cost savings through review/analysis of new and existing agreements

Provide leadership, and guidance in the growth and development of HELP USA through the areas of
organizational management, employee development and fund raising

Direct the successful development and management of three facilities and onsite events.

Ensure effective communications among employees, management and sponsors in all facilities.

Provide ongoing assessment of program and staff needs

Identify potential funding streams to enhance program Services

Collaborate with service providers, and community leaders to enhance and develop community
relations

Serve as chief liaison to Board of Directors and Executive Committee and serve as a spokesperson to
the media and all constituencies.

Make recommendations and implement policies and programs set forth by the Board of Directors along
with managing and monitoring the organization’s 5 year strategic plan

Implement and maintain a “team model” approach to service delivery

Maintain an annual operations budget of $ 9.6 million

Supervise over 80 social service employees and administrative staff

FORDHAM UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK, New York, NY 1999-2007
ADJUNCT PROFESSOR & FIELD SUPERVISOR

Classroom lecturer: social work skill development and clinical reflection
Clinical teaching and supervision of students

Preparing and administering examinations

Designing lesson plans and evaluating student performance

HELP USA/WestHELP Greenburgh, Greenburgh, NY 1995-1998
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Provided direct oversight of independent living programs, case management services, educational and
vocational services, child care, safety, maintenance and mental health counseling.

Created spreadsheets to track agreements, case records, costs, renewal dates and other pertinent
information.

Administered vender contracts; prepare and release work orders to contracted firms



e Developed and maintained community support and solicited donated resources.
e Counseled teens on numerous issues including academics, health and employment

HELP USA/ WestHELP Greenburgh, Greenburgh, NY 1993-1995
ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
e Supervised, recruitment, hired, trained, and coordinated ongoing staff development and team building
e Monitored, evaluated and provided supervision to the department of social services to ensure sound
casework practice and adherence to New York State Part 900 regulations and HELP policies and
procedures
e Maintained qualitative and quantitative reporting systems to assess effectiveness of service delivery
and to identify gaps in service
e FEnsured contractual compliance with program goals and objectives

SAINT CHRISTOPHER-OTTILIE, Sea Cliff, NY 1986-1991
DIRECTOR

o Bnsured the quality of services provided to the program’s eighty-four residents and families

e Provided direct supervision, recruitment, hiring, training, budget development and monitoring

e Bnhanced program development, clinical supervision, and worked with community representatives to
build comrnunity ties

e FEnsured compliance with State and Federal regulations governing the operation of residential
programs and service provisions

SAINT CHRISTOPHER-OTTILIE, Sea Cliff, NY ' 1985-1986
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR _
e Supervisied group home programs along with providing clinical supervision of six social workers for a
program. of eighty-six adolescents
e Assisted program director with annual program budgets, program development and staff training issues

SAINT CHRISTOPHER-OTTILIE, Sea CIiff, NY 1984-1985
PROGRAM MANAGER ,
e Operated and oversaw all aspects of the boarding homes for eighteen adolescent girls
e Conducted supervision of child care staff, clinical staff, and social service staff
e Monitored and designed treatment plans, developed community resources and provided referrals to
families and residents for continuum of care
« Ensured the group home met all City and State regulations.

PRIVATE PRACTICE: | 1983-2005

Treatment speci alizations: Borderline Personality Disorders, Mood Disorders, Anxiety Disorders and
Obsessive Compulsive Disorders. -

SPECIALIZED TRAINING:

Crisis Intervention - Train the Trainer, Cornell University, 1995
Field Instructor’s Certificate, New York University School of Social Work, June 1983
Substance Abuse Professional May 2012

EDUCATION:

Adelphi Uniiversity, / 083 — Post-Masters in Clinical Practice
State of New York, 1981 — Certified Social Worker



Adelphi University School of Social Work, 1979 — Master of Social Work
Adelphi University School of Social Work, 1978 — Bachelor of Social Work

SKILLS:
Microsoft Office Suite - Word, Excel, Outlook, Publisher, PowerPoint

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:

National Association of Social Workers
Rotary International .
NADACC National Association Drug and Alcohol

References Available Upon Request



Jamel Garner

Exemption (1)

Goal:

To work for a soc1a1 service organization that is client centered, but also prov1des an
enwromnent where employees can adVance in the organization.

Experience:

Urban Pathways - FIPA Outreach Programs: New York, NY
: Outreack Director - November 2009 fo Present

¢ Do street outreach ina Vaned and diverse schedule, including two Weekends per
month, and morning, day, evenings according £o a schedule.
e Overall responsibility for implantation of outreach, engagement, assessment,
counseling and referral sérvices at relevant program’
o Design, plan, administer and evaluate the Pro gram in oonjunctwn with.
administrative and funder’s management
" s To ensure proper tracking of relevarit outcomes including Robin Hood
foundation deliverables '
»  Assist in fecruiting, hirihg, training; support and direcily supervise staff complete
staff performance evaluations and monitor the productivity of staff
e Coordinate meetings, attend meetings, and disciss any needed progtam '
modifications with Amtrak, Flatiron, and PATH management ’
& Act as agency representative in comnmuriity and work related meetmgs
e Complete all reports in a timely and efficient manner, mcludmg the compilation
of statistical and narrative program measurements; utilize program fepotts to
analyze program successes and work to eliminate pro gram obstacles, effect any
" necessary changes in programming
¢ REstablish and/or enhance the working relahonshlps with referral sources
& Monitoring of the program's budget, purchasing and petty cash according to
agency policy.
o Serve as manager of all office functions for Amtrak Port Authonty, and Flatiron
- - programs including the purchase of supplies and equipmeént per contfact terms. -
Schedule staff and arrange for coverage in the event of absences.
= Work with the other outreach programs and Director to facilitate staffing
coverage ‘
e Review and approve electronic t1mesheets for release to the payroll department m
‘ a timely mannet.
s Perforni all other duties as assigned



Urban Pathways MOC/A.D.E.: New York, NY -

Evemng and Overnight Coordznator/A D.E Director- Aprzl 2008 to October 2009

(]

L

'De81gn, plan administers and evaluates the A.D. E project

Recruit, hire, train, support and directly supervise staff as indicated; complete
staff performance ¢ evaluations and weekly monitors the productivity of all staff

Coordinates meetings, attends meetmgs and discuss any needed } program

_modifications
.Complete all reports in-a. tlmely and efficient manner mcludmg the compﬂatlon

of statistical and narrative program measurements; utilize program reports to

-analyze program Successes and works to eliminate program obstacles

Establishes and/or enhances working relatlonshlps with referral sources

Schedile staff and arrange for coverage in the event of absences

Tdentify clients that meet criteria for the MOC program and place them on the pre
caseload tracking fonn o

' Urban Pathways O_peration AIternaﬁve: New York, NY

Program Director- October 2007 to April 2008

[ )

~ Designs, pla:n,é' administers and evaluates the Operation Alternative

project in conjunction with bus tetminal and Lincoln tunnel management
Recruits, hires, trains, supports and directly supervise staff as indicated; complete
staff performance evaluations and weekly monitors the productlwty of all staff
Coordinates meetings, attend meetings, and discuss any needed pro gram
modifications with Bus terminal and Lincoln tunnel management

Completes all reports in a timely and efficient manner, including the compilation
of statistical and narrative program measurements; utilize program reports to

" analyze program successes and works to eliminate program obstacles
"Establishes and/or enhances working relatxons}ups with referral sources

Asszstanz‘ Dzrector September 2003 to October 2007

Submit monthly report and case summary to be presented to the PABT
management by the Program Director -

Supervise a staff of eleven full time and part time employees

Prepare the monthly schedule ’

‘Provide case managemeiit sérvices including outreach, engagement, crisis

management, assessment, referral and escort to appropriate programs
Prepare progress notes and documents needed for case recording; maintain case
records in an up-to-date manner

Senior Team Leader- April 2001 to September 2003

Attend case conferences and meetings as directed by the Program Director }



®

Develop a knowledge base of commumty Tesources for potential referral and
develop relevant contacts to éase the transition into-programs on behalf of clients
Prepare the monthly schedule and assist the Assistant D1rector with ﬁndmg '
weekend coverage.
'Signs off on Master Log during the AM sh:tﬁ and assures that proper
documentation is completed
Provide cdse management services mcludlng outreach, engagement crisis
management, assessment, referral and escort to appropnate programs .
Prepare progress notes and documents needed for case recording; maintain case

. records in an up-to-date manner

©

(]

-]

Senior Outreach Case Manager— March 2000 to April 2001

s Supervises fhe title V workers, prepales documentatmn for the Department for the
, Aging as required. '
- o Sigps off on Master Log duimg the AM. Shlﬁ and assures that proper -
- do cumentation i completed
e Provide case management services mcludmg outreach, engagement, crisis
management, assessment, referral and escort to appropriate programs
. Prepare progress notes and documents needed for case recording; maintain case -
records in an up—to date manner.

Cornerstone Of Medical Arts Center: New York, NY
On- Call Intake Coordmator~ December 1 999 to December 2000

® Assess clients and mput their information into the computer system
» Screen phone calls

" BRC Los Vecinos: New York, NY
Case Manager - November 1998 to July 1999

"Write progress notes for clients on my caseload
Wiite psychosocials for clients on caseload
Refer clients to day treatment programs

Escort ch'ents to eippointrnents

e O &

-]

BRC Ceil Ivorv House: New York, NY .
Reszdentzal Aide- Febiuary 1 997 to November 1 998

Escort clients to appointments

Assist clients with food and clothes shopping
Take clients on trips to the movies

Dispense medication to clients

e @ o @




.Education:

City College of New York: New York, N
Student from 1993 to 1998 o

Cardinal Hayes 'Hig'h-S.chool: New York, NY
Student from 1989 to 1992

Hunter College, School of Social Work: New York,NY
Student from 2012 to ’

Achievements:

City College Dean’s List Spring 1995/Fall 1995; Lincoln. Hospital Volunteer of the Year
Award; The Lay Faculty Association. Scholarship for Outstanding Academic
Achievement and Superior School Spirit Award; High School Diploma; National Honor
Society Member (High Scheol); Golden Key National Honor Socjety (College), Magna
Cum Laude; Phi Beta Kappa; Kenneth Clark Award in Psychology:. Bachelor of Arts
Degree in Psychology ' o A

Club/Actvities:

Lincoln Hospital Volunteers Club; Cardinal Hayes High School Freshman Recruifing
Team; Photography Club , '



MATTHE'W KANTOR

Exemption (1)

Currently working as a Street Outreac'’h Team Leader. Five years + experience in
supportive housing and shelter system-—education, therapy, recreation, case work.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

URBAN PATHWAYS. - New York, NY
PATH Outreach Team Leader - October 2013 to present. :
e Lead homeless outreach team Monday through Friday, 12 to 8 am, working to shelter and

house chronically and street homele:ss on the Manhattan side of the PATH transportation
system.: :
o Place clients in dfop—in, shelier, and detoxification facilities; log work in AWARDS;
prepare daily reports; follow-up on caseload; drive nightly shiit

LENOX HiLL NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE. - New York, NY
Arts and Healthy Foods Manager/Cross-Sitc: Socialization Director/Stipend Employee Manager/Agency
Advocate/Arts Instructor - September 2011 to July 2013.

Originally hired to manage one: program, new responsibilities continually given.

e Managed arts, healthy foods and recreational therapy program at Casa Mutua, a 54 unit
supportive housing site for mentzilly ill, formerly homeless adults:
o Created, planned and supervised menus, food pantry, special functions, recreational
activities; track monthly riumbers and budgets
o Managed in-house stipend employee staff; scheduling, payroll, budgeting, tasks and
responsibilities
o Managed and tracked. budgets related to vendors, in-house employee stipend
programming, and agency funding '
o Managed relationships with city agencies related to audits and facility upkeep
o Worked closely with clients, case work staff, and administrative staff to ensure positive
client outcomes as «oncerns clinical and social stability; managed day to day
administrative tasks for site i.e. expense requests, petty cash, and transportation
e Managed monthly socialization and recreational programming at 100 bed women’s homeless
shelter, Women's Shelter a't Park Avenue Armory, for women with persistent mental illness
age 45 and older: _ '
o planned and implemented calendars and events; promoted and supervised events and
outings _
coordinated with outside volunteers; ran groups and activities
o collaborated with on-site staff to build community and serve on-going population and
facility needs
o Represented Lenox Hill ¥ eighborhood House and Supportive Housing issues in Albany and to
City Council;
o participated in MYC District 8's pioneering Participatory Budget initiatives
o advocated for nizeds of older adults, formerly homeless, and supportive housing to city
and state govexnment officials on-site, in Albany, and at community functions and
district offices



e Taught music, literature and creative writing classes at Innovative Senior Center, one of seven
centers given special mayoral funding via DFTA; assisted center directors in day to day
operations and community and facility growth and management; ran Bmerican Classics book
club and current events workshops and coordinated special events and collaborations as
needed; attended two Creative Aging Trainings at University Settlement.

HOUSING AND SERVICES, INC. - New York, NY
Socialization and Education Director/ Learning Center Director/Recreational Coordinator - January
2008 — September 2011

e Launched agency’s first Education/V ocational initiative by opening and managing new
' Learning Center at 325-unit supportive housing residence Kenmore Hall with an emphasis on

computer skills leading to personal, professional, and socialization applications; as well as
other quality of life programming; HSI is a not for profit that provides permanent housing with
services on site for formerly homeless adults living with mental illness, physical and
developmental disabilities, substance abuse issues, and other needs endemic to the
homeless population who have left the shelter system

e Engaged clients at their particular functional levels and created curriculum and rapport to
grow with them as goals were achieved; assessed each participant’s skill set and
temperament in on-going and improvised fashion, tailoring program plans toward both short
and long-term goals, as well as addressing immediate needs and issues of empowerment

e Built strong relationships across a spectrum of ages, ethnicities, and educational
backgrounds; increased socialization, “barrier-breaking,” and community building involving
many of the hardest to engage tenants (consumers); helped programming participants
(consumers) increase housing stability and achieve greater self sufficiency

e Planned and supervised all recreational trips, events, activities, and classes that focused on
community building, health, and quality of life; taught arts and writing classes; both
respectively culminated in staged play readings and art exhibitions

ACHIEVEMENT FIRST ENDEAVOR CHARTER SCHOOL - Brooklyn, NY
Tutor — Fall 2007 — Winter 2008
e Tutored 5% grade students in literacy during “Saturday Academy,” a program designed to
pull struggling readers ahead and improve test scores
¢ Prepared weekly lessons; developed strong rapport with students and sought to implement
school philosophy which centered on college-bound focus for all students

PROJECT SAMARITAN, INC. - New York, NY
Literacy Consultant - Fall 2007 - Wintex 2008

e Assisted in launch and taught new GED based learning program for Project Samaritan, Inc.,
an organization that provides vocational support to adults living with HIV and AIDS

HuDSON HONORS MIDDLE SCHOOL - New York, NY
English Language Arts Teacher - Fall 2005 - Spring 2007°

e Planned and instructed all facets of 6% Grade English Language Arts and 6™ Grade Social
Studies in a NYC Public Schools; diverse student body with varying achievement levels,
special needs, socio-economic experience, and ethnic/racial and linguistic backgrounds



o Implemented Columbia University Teachers College Workshop Model which emphasized
differentiated instruction; focused on student conferencing; succinct teaching points; thirty
minutes of daily reading and writing in class, and hour of the same at home; maintenance of
reading logs, responses, and writers notebooks; writing projects included memoir, social
issue essays, fiction and extended reading responses

e Taught inclusive classrooms wherein students with Individualized Educational Plans
participated/integrated into group learning and classroom activities

e Served as mentor to youth; used platiorm as a teacher to engage students in conflict
resolution; academically emphasized student creativity, goal setting, and critical thinking
skills; encouraged use of visual art and music to promote literacy skills and thought

JACKSON CORRECTIONAL FACILITY - Jackson, MI
Prison Creative Arts Program
Writing Workshop Coordinator — Summer 2000

e Planned, instructed, and conducted “The Poet’s Corner,” a weekly writing class and
workshop in Jackson Correctional Facility, a maximum security men’s prison; developed
strong and trusting relationships in an intense, passionate environment

e Coordinated and published an anthology of prisoner-student work, and planned/executed a
successful public reading of the anthology

EDUCATION

FORDHAM UNIVERSITY
Master of Arts in Education, 2007

e Intense focus on both theory and practice of teaching English literacy (e.g. reading and
writing skills at all levels of need), differentiated/special needs learning, and lesson planning
and classroom management

e Completed thesis project that combined first hand student research and text to assess
connections between literacy and visual arts, and subsequent implications

UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN
Bachelor of Arts in English Language and Literature, 1998

o Additional 20+ credits in sociology

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL AND VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

e TFEATURES WRITER — JOURNALISM- Regularly contribute music - articles to newsweeklies,
websites, magazines, and music reference guides most notably NY Press and All Hip Hop;
Conduct interviews, research, and fact checking

¢ VOLUNTEER EFFORTS - Children’s Volunteer at Safehouse Domestic Violence Center;
Katrina Relief Effort in New Orleans; both included extensive teach-ins on issues relevant

to domestic violence and disaster relief



Tyrone Prioleau

Exemption (1)

Objective: Seeking a position with a company that offers growth opportunities.
Experience: Urban Pathways, Inc New York, NY
Outreach Specialist/Case Manager 5/2012-Present

Seek and assist homeless clients who are ready to leave streets and help

them through; recommend whatever rehabilitation process required, escort clients

to program. Conduct individualized assessments and interviews with clients. Provide
information & referral services, provide advocacy and emergency services. Follow up

on referrals in order to assess outcomes and provide additional services, Maintain records
files of individual serviced, outreach activities conducted efc...

Phase Piggy Back Inc, New York, NY
Counselor 1/2012-5/2012
Perform Comprehensive Psychosocial Assessments.

Develop and implement Treatment Plans based on identified needs.

Adheres to standard for maintaining documentation of case records.

Provide individual and Group Therapy session but not limited to

Social skills Training, Budgeting, Personal Hygiene, 12 Steps, Voc/Ed,

Living Tobacco Free, Anger Management, Relapse Prevention.

Phase Piggy Back Inc. New York, NY
Outreach Specialist 8/2011 — 1/2012
Conducts intake assessment and interviews.

Responsible for phone Interviews for appropriate candidates.

Make presentations to outside agencies when required.

Making proper referrals to rehab, detox or paniry.

Outreach weelly i.e. flyers, networking with other agencies.

Q&E Services Englewood, NJ
Post Construction Worker 3/2003 — 6/2009
Post construction cleaning

Painting, plastering, taping, vanish, stain, enamel and lacquer

trimmings and fixtures of building and other structures.

Clean tools, equipment, materials and work area. Repair and install

doors, hinges, locksets, handles and frames. Install moldings, shelving,

paneling, framing, dry walling and repair.

Salvation Army ) Carlton House Queens, NY
Housing Specialist 7/20083 - 3/2004

Processed and followed up with families housing application-

Liaison between residents and fandlords/ real estate brokers

Assisted residents with public assistance case problems

Produce monthly reports and extensive documentation of all contact

Volunteers of America Eden House, NY
Supervisor/ Senior Case Manager/Substance Abuse Counselor 9/2001 - 3/2003
Supervised case manager staff ’
Provided primary case management responsibilities

Facilitate group on relapse prevention, life support, harm reduction

Provided direct counseling, guidance service

Provided counseling, appropriates referrals and advocacy services

Provided case management as assigned

Generated accurate Incident report

Education: Marist College Poughkeepsie, NY
B.A.,, Social Science 5/1992
Sullivan Community College Lock Sheldrake, NY
A.A., Business Administration . 5/1988

License: Valid Driver License, Class D

Skilis: Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel. Apple Type 35WPM. Operate power and hand tools

References: Available upon request



Hilton Ray Douglas {ii

Exemption (1)

Objective: To obtain a position in the Soclal Service field that will aliow me to utilize my excellent, human service,
Interpersonal, and Communication skills.

Work Experience

12/07- Present

6/04-2/07

0/03-8/04

8/01-5/03

Training/
Certificates

Skills

Urban Pathways, Inc New York, NY
Entitlements Specialist/Case manager/Outreach Case Manager

e

9

Ensure proper chart maintenance, including weekly progress notes, individual case
plans, and psychosocial assessments

Assist clients in obtaining identification and entittements

Collaborate with Housing Specialist and prepare 2010e housing packags, as
appropriate

Escort clients into community as needed

Coordinate medical and psychiatric services as needed

Attend weekly casework and case conference meetings

Weston United Community Renewal Inc, New York, NY
Safety and Support Aide

o

-

4 & 6 & v @

Residential Program for Mentally il Chemical Abusers

Ass;sted clients with completing applications regarding (Medicaid, food stamps,
elc

Developed and conducted tralning’s regarding Adult Living Skills

Administered medication to residents

Conducted conflict resolution and medication management groups

Provided substance abuse counseling to residents

Maintained residents records

Maintained dally log

Harlem Congregations for Community Improvement, New York, NY
Quireach Speciafisi/ Food Card Program

e & 0 & @ O

Assisted clients with obtaining food stamps

Provided outreach to clients

Linked clients to sources with other service providers
Conducted intake and neads assessments

Worked with clients to develop short and long term goals
Maintained clients records

Volunteers of America Ward’s Island, HNew York, NV
intake Specialist/ Case Manager :

*

% ¢ & o

Provided finkage and referral services to homeless men
Provided clients with things needed for healthy adult living skills
Conducted intake and needs assessments

Developed short and long-term goals with clients

Maintained client records

New York State Drivers License, New York State Certified HIV Trainer, CPR, AMAP,
SCIP-R, AWARDS and First Aid

Proficient in Microsoft OS, Microsoft Word, AWARDS, CARES, FOOTHOLD, internet and
Library Research

References furnished upon request.



ATTACHMENT 3

JOB DESCRIPTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC.

JOB DESCRIPTION
Job Title: Program Director — Outreach I’rograms
Job Site: _ Port Authority Bus Terminal/l_incoln Tunnel
Supervised By: Deputy Executive Director
Supervision Extended: Outreach workers, Case Aide/Drivers

Overall Responsibilities:

To ensure that all outreach service delivery meets the contractual commitment and the
needs of all homeless persons served through the program

To administer agency policies and procedures in a fair and even-handed manner

To ensure that standard operating procedures of the Port Authority of New Yotk and New
Jersey are followed by all staff and that all staff receive support and supervision
appropriate to their needs

To be on-call on a twenty-four hour basis

Specific Duties:

1.

Supervise the homeless outreach team members, assist homeless outreach team members
in providing all services whenever and wherever needed, including but not limited to:
driving the van and engaging homeless men and women in an effort to gain their
acceptance of alternate shelter

Oversee the development, implementation and follow-up on consumer interventions
Oversee homeless outreach team members’ assessments of the nature and extent of
specific consumer problems through the development of a psychosocial history by
reviewing social, medical, mental health, substance abuse and general history
Contact appropriate Port Authority staff and other agencies when referring discharge
planning with agencies to which homeless have been referred for a brief stay
Participate in crisis interventions



10.
11.

12.
13.

14.
15.

Design, plan, administer and evaluate the Program in conjunction with administrative and
funder’s management : .

Assist in recruiting, hiring, training; support and directly supervise staff; complete staff
performance evaluations and monitor the productivity of staff on a weekly basis
Coordinate meetings, attend meetings, and discuss any needed program modifications
with Port authority of New York and New Jersey management

Complete all reports in a timely and efficient manner, including the compilation of
statistical and narrative program measurements; utilize program reports to analyze
program successes and work to eliminate program obstacles; effect any necessary
changes in programming

Establish and/or enhance working relationships with referral sources

Provide outreach, engagement, assessment, counseling and referral services as part of a
team, including Port Authority Police

Serve as a manager of all office functions for Port authority of New York and New Jersey
programs including the purchase of supplies and equipment per contract terms

Schedule staff and arrange for coverage in the event of absences

Attend trainings of the agency when relevant

Perform all other duties as assigned

Qualifications:

Master of Social Work (MSW) degree in a mental health discipline and a minimum of
three (3) years experience in outreach and referral services to homeless individuals
seeking shelter; in lieu of a MSW, a BA/BS degree in social work, psychology or related
human services field with a minimum of three years experience working with the
homeless or providing social services

Experience with, and sensitivity to, the identified population

Expertise in working with police and all other outreach stakeholders

Administrative, supervisory, and program development expertise in homeless services
Excellent verbal and written skills

Ability to work cooperatively and direct members of a team in common mission and
purpose

Bilingual is a plus

Must be computer literate

Possession of a valid driver’s license
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC.
JOB DESCRIPTION

Job Title: Program Supervisor
Job Site: Port Authority Bus Terminal/Lincoln Tunnel
Supervised By: Program Director
Supervision Extended: Outreach workers, all levels; all Case Aide/Drivers

Overall Responsibilities:

To ensure that service delivery meets the contractual commitment and the needs of all
homeless persons served through the program

To administer agency policies and procedures in a fair and even-handed manner

To ensure that standard operating procedures of the Port Authority of New York and New
Jersey are followed by all staff and that all staff receive support and supervision
appropriate to their needs ‘

To be on-call on a twenty-four hour basis; work on-site at least one weekend day

Specific Duties:

1.

2.
3.

Complete Daily Activity/Encounter Reports and Daily Sign-In Sheets and provide same
to the General Manager with the monthly invoice

Supervise the social services case workers ‘

Prepare a written profile report and proposed plan for each homeless person identified on
the premises on how to assist them

Engage homeless men and women in an effort to gain their acceptance of alternate shelter
and other needed services

Observe men and women for indication of major problems that would impact the type of
program appropriate for the homeless individual :

Attempt to obtain information from homeless individuals as to their past history,
especially their involvement with programs in the past to which it might be appropriate
for them to return



o0

10.
11.
12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.
18.

Assist in the process of placement, including the providing of transportation of homeless
Maintain and upgrade clerical and professional skills

Design, plan, administer and evaluate the Program in conjunction with Port Authority
management

Assist in recruiting, hiring, training; support and directly supervise staff

Complete staff performance evaluations and monitor the productivity of staff
Coordinate meetings, attend meetings, and discuss any needed program modifications
with Port Authority of New York and New Jersey management

Complete all reports in a timely and efficient manner, including the compilation of
statistical and narrative program measurements; utilize program reports to analyze
program successes and work to eliminate program obstacles; effect any necessary
changes in programming

Establish and/or enhance working relationships with referral sources

Provide outreach, engagement, assessment, counseling and referral services as part of a
team, including Port Authority Police o

Serve as a manager of all office functions for Port authority of New York and New Jersey
programs including the purchase of supplies and equipment per contract terms

Attend trainings of the agency when relevant

Perform all other duties as assigned

Qualifications:

Master of Social Work (MSW) degree in a mental health discipline and a minimum of
two (2) years experience in outreach and referral services to homeless individuals seeking
shelter; in lieu of a MSW, a BA/BS degree in social work, psychology or related human
services field with a minimum of three years experience working with the homeless or
providing social services

Experience with, and sensitivity to, the identified population

Expertise in working with police and all other outreach stakeholders

Administrative, supervisory, and program development expertise in homeless services
Excellent verbal and written skills

Ability to work cooperatively and direct members of a team in common mission and
purpose

Bilingual is a plus

Must be computer literate

Possession of a valid driver’s license
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC.
JOB DESCRIPTION
Job Title: Social Services Case Worker
Job Site: Port Authority Bus Terminal/Lincoln Tunnel
Supervised By: Program Director and Senior Outreach Worker

Overall Responsibilities:

To meet the needs of homeless clients by being responsive to the range of service
possibilities for each individual '

To maintain daily activity logs documenting work

To accept supervision and direction as part of a team

Specific Duties:

1.

2.

3.

o v

Complete Daily Activity/Encounter Reports and Daily Sign-In Sheets and provide same

to the Program Monitor

Engage homeless men and women in an effort to gain their acceptance of alternate shelter
and other needed services

Observe men and women for indication of major problems that would impact the type of
program appropriate for the homeless individual

Attempt to obtain information from homeless individuals as to their past history,
especially their involvement with programs in the past to which it might be appropriate
for them to return

Assist in the process of placement, including the providing of transportation of homeless
Maintain and upgrade clerical and professional skills

Provide a full range of case management services including outreach, engagement, crisis
intervention, crisis management, assessment, counseling, and referral to appropriate
resources

Develop a knowledge base of community resources for potential referral and develop
celevant contacts to ease the transition into programs on behalf of clients

Prepare referral letters, forms, and escort/drive clients to referral sources/location



10. Identify special needs of clients and facilitate special intervention to meet these needs
11. Advocate for clients relative to follow-up services and continue to engage those who

refuse services

12. Prepare progress notes and documents needed for case recording, maintain case records

in an up-to-date manner on paper and in computer applications

13. Attend trainings of the agency when relevant
14. Perform all other duties as assigned

Qualifications: ,

BA degree in a related field or CASAC, or three (3) years experience working in outreach
and referral services to homeless individuals seeking shelter

Excellent engagement skills

Good oral and written skills

Ability to work as a member of a team

Bilingual is a plus

Must be computer literate

Possession of a valid driver’s license
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UD > State Information > New York > Homeless Information > Women's Shelters

Nomen's Shelters: New York

ew York City Women's Shelter Intakes

« Franklin, 1122 Franklin Avenue, Bronx Jamaica Armory, 93-03 168th Street, Jamalca, Queens
« Brooklyn Women's Shelter, 116 Wiillams Avenue, Brooklyn

quinox Domestic Violence Services
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‘ew York (Manhattan)

alley House

75 Seventh Avenue
ew York, NY 10001
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he Bowery Mission
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enry Street Settlement
65 Henry Street
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jomes for the Homeless

6 Cooper Square - 6th Floor
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lousing Works

‘94 Broadway, Suite 706
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lazareth Housing
119 East 11th Street
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212) 777-10104%

IYC Dept of Homeless Services
}3 Beaver Street
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{YC Housing Preservation and Development
100 Gold Street

Jew York, NY 10038
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>athways to Housing
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New York, NY

'212) 289-0000 ¢

Praxis Housing Initiatives
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O Box 886
liddletown, NY 10940
845) 342-3978 %%
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yepartment of Social Services
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845) 574-4850 (%

3aratoga Spring

shelters of Saratoga
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Saratoga Springs, NY 12866
'518) 581-1097¢&

Smithtown

Dptions for Community Living
202 East Main Street, Suite 7
Smithtown, NY 11787

'516) 361-9020 ¢ x103 4%

Syracuse

The Salvation Army of the Syracuse Area
577 South Salina Street

Syracuse, NY 13202

(315) 475-1688 ¢

Rescue Mission
Administrative Offices
120 Gifford Street
Syracuse, NY 13202
(315) 472-62514¢

Suffolk County

Nassau-Suffolk Coalition for the Homeless
Continuum of Care

38 Old Country Road

Garden City, NY 11530
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The Porr Authority of NY & N
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New York, NY 10004

2123()18000TL‘ To Whom 111 ‘\I'ﬂ'\' (oncerm:
212.361.7977fax

1 am writing to ¢Spress our support tora proposal from Urban Pathways to provide
outreach and referral services to homeless men and women at the PABT/ET, Urban
Pathwavs currently coneracts with DHS for the Olivieri Drop-in Center as well as the
Travelers and Hegeman Safe Haven. Please fedd free ro reach out ro me with any questions.

Sincerely,
i _,(/'\,QL(‘;\ 3 /r\ . (._’/(/’“{:,ﬁ?( A,

Michele M. Oversey

’



Depariment of
Homeless Services

Gilbert Taylor
Commissioner

Douglas C. James
Deputy Commissioner
Aduit Services

Danielle Minelli-Pagnotta

Acting Assistant
Commissloner

Street Homelessness
dminelli@dhs.nyc.gov

33 Beaver Street
16th Floor
New York, NY 10004

212.361.0571 tel
917.637.7148 fax

January 13, 2014

Lisa Lombardi
575 8th Ave #900
New York, NY 10018

Dear Ms. Lombardi,

Piease allow this letter to confirm that DHS is unable make commitments to bed
availability or usage in letters of support for any agency. DHS will confirm currently
contracted programs and support new initiatives that will enhance services for homeless
individuals in New York City. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Sirlcergly,_ L L
éyéwé,é/( \//A{/ (-’t }JQC(E)V K’;{'&(@“

Danielie Minelli Pagnotta
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Independent Aunditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Urban Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Urban Pathways,
Inc. and Affiliates which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fajr presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opmmn on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with audltmg standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors and Consultants 655 Third Avenue, 12th Floor, New York, NY 10017
Serving the Health Care & Not-for-Profit Sectors (212) 867-4000 / Fax (212) 867-9810 / www.loebandtroper.com
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Urban Pathways, Inc, and Affiliates as of June 30,
2013, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The information in Schedule 1 and Schedule 2 as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information for the year ended June 30, 2013 is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Urban Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates’ June 30, 2012 consolidated
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
consolidated financial statements in our report dated January 29, 2013. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,

2012 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

We had also expressed an unmodified opinion on the supplementary information included in
Schedule 1 for the year ended June 30, 2012 in relation to those financial statements as a
whole. In our opinion, the 2012 supplementary information in Schedule 1 is consistent, in
all material respects, with the audited supplementary information from which it has been

derived.
Torek » Troper P

November 19, 2013

||| LOEB & TROPER L



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30,2013

(With Summarized Financial Information for June 30, 2012)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash ~ participants’ accounts

Tnvestments (Note 2)

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expense, security deposits, other assets and other
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $112,586 and $65,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively)

Client service fees receivable (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $23,000 and $36,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively)

Cash and cash equivalents - funded reserves

Fixed assets - net (Note 3)

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS AND
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable - construction
Advances from government agencies
Long-term debt (Note 4)
Participants' accounts

Total liabilities

Net assets and noncontrolling interests
Net assets (Exhibit B)
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted (Note 8)

Total net assets
Noncontrolling interests (Exhibit B)
Total net assets and noncontrolling interests

Total liabilities, net assets and noncontrolling interests

See independent anditor's report.

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

EXHIBIT A

2013 2012
- 4,352,927 2,536,017
291,694 275,301
275,290 239,037
1,502,739 1,190,996
578,841 581,645
163,900 221,377
1,229,768 327,960
46,807,781 37,616,247
55,202,940 42,988,580
1,596,317 1,092,875
1,946,255 885,466
1,416,638 516,886
35,169,365 31,030,378
291,694 275,301
40,420,269 33,800,906
6,846,505 4,086,700
528,024 495,380
7,374,529 4,582,080
7,408,142 4,605,594
14,782,671 9,187,674
55,202,940 42,988,580
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Cash flows from operating activitios
Change in net assets (Exhibit B) $
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Change in non-controlling interests
Decrease (increase) in assets
Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expense, security deposits, other assets
. and other receivables
Client service fees receivable
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advances from government agencies

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed asset acquisitions
Purchase of investments
{(Increase) decrease in funded reserves

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt
Capital contributions from limited partners
Principal payment on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - ehd of year $

Supplemental cash flow inforrnation
Cash paid for interest $

See independent auditor's report.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

EXHIBIT D

2013 2012
2,792,449 $ 1,426,127
1,259,471 598,131

(1,060,365) (223,437)
(311,743) (106,294)
2,304 (243,710)
57,477 (221,377)
503,442 112,125
899,752 163,283
4,143,287 1,504,848
(9,390,216) (13,378,250)
(36,253) (19,282)
(901,308) 8,571

(10,328,277) (13,388,961)
6,438,519 10,764,045
3,862,913 1,695,495

(2,299,532) (2,003,855)
8,001,900 10,455,685
1,816,910 (1,428,428)
2,536,017 3,964,445
4,352,927 2,536,017
2,475,667 342,186




URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Urban Pathways, Inc. (UPT) was formed in 1977. UPI serves as the sole corporate member of
the following affiliates:

Westside Cluster 902-904 Amsterdam Avenue Housing Development Fund Co., Inc.
1965 Belmont Avenue Housing Development Fund Corporation

West 53 Street Housing Development Fund Corporation

Hallets Cove Urban Housing Development Fund Corporation

1344 Clinton Ave. Housing Development Fund Corporation

Boston Road Housing Development Corporation

East 162 Housing Development Fund Corporation

» & » € € ©°© ©°

UPI and Westside Cluster are not-for-profit corporations which are exempt from federal income

taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. They have not been classified as
private foundations.

The balance of the aforementioned organizations are not-for-profit organizations exempt from
state and Jocal taxes under Section 402 of the not-for-profit corporation law but are required to
file corporate returns with the IRS. : :

UPL is a community-based agency which serves homeless women and men including many who
are mentally ill and/or chemically addicted. A drop-in center (the Antonio G. Olivieri Center for
Homeless Women), two safe haven residences (the Travelers Hotel and Hegeman), five
permanent residences (Cluster House, Ivan Shapiro House, Hughes House, W. 53™ Street, and
Hallets Cove) and outreach programs offer food and shelter, medical treatment and
psychological counseling, case management services, substance abuse counseling, and other

Qliil wildll

support services which help clients to function successfully as members of a community.

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and change in net assets of
UPI and the following affiliated organizations under its control, herein referred to as the
“Agency.” The following summarizes each of the related entities:

»  Westside Cluster 902-904 Amsterdam Avenue Housing Development Fund Co., Inc.
(Westside Cluster) was formed in 1986 to provide permanent residence for homeless
persons for one of the Agency’s programs. The facility is under renovation and, upon
completion, will be operated as a single room occupancy residential facility. Amsterdam
GP, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Westside Cluster.

~continued-




URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION (continued)

1965 Belmont Avenue Housing Development Fund Corporation (Belmont Avenue) was
formed in 2008 to own a property under construction which will be located in the Bronx,
NY and operates as a community single room occupancy residential facility. Belmont
Avenue owns a 75% interest in Hughes House, Inc.

Hallets Cove Urban Housing Development Fund Corporation (HCU-HDFC) was formed in
2011 to own a property located in Queens, NY and operated as a community residence

single room occupancy residential (CR-SRO) facility. Hallets Cove Urban GP, Inc. is a
wholly owned subsidiary of HCU-HDFC.

1344 Clinton Ave. Housing Development Fund Corporation (Clinton Ave.) was formed in
2011 to own a property under construction which will be located in Bronx, NY and operated

as a supportive housing for homeless individuals. Clinton Ave. owns a 75% interest in 1344
Clinton GP, Inc.

Boston Road Housing Development Corporation (Boston Road) was formed in 2013 to own

a building containing 43 apartments to be constructed in Bronx, NY and gualifying for
federal low-income housing tax credits.

East 162 Housing Development Fund Corporation was formed in 2013 to own a building
containing 55 units of supportive housing and 31 other units to be constructed in Bronx, NY
also qualifying for federal low-income housing tax credits.

The related limited partnership and general partner are shown in Note 6.

The following is a description of the Agency’s programs:

Housing Programs - The Agency provides transitional and permanent housing to adults living
in New York City, as well as supportive services to individuals who face challenges in addition
to their homelessness, like substance abuse and mental illnesses. All of the housing programs
include services and assistance necessary for them to become stable, and develop their ability to

live independently. Sexrvices inctude therapeutic, counseling, vocational training and placement,
rehabilitative and self-help programs.

Non-Housing Programs - The Agency also provides assistance and referrals through its street
outreach and drop in centers where services such as meals, showers and short term counseling
are available.

The Agency’s primary sources of revenues include government grants and contracts,
contributions, rental income and client service fees.

~continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION (continued)

The Agency consists of not-for-profit and for-profit corporations and limited pattnerships. The
for-profit entities do not have and are not expected to have any substantial taxable income. All
tax benefits or obligations of the limited partnerships are passed through to the individual
partners. None of the corporations is liable for unrelated business income taxes and,

accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been provided in these consolidated financial
staternents.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting and consolidation - The consolidated financial statements are prepared on
the accrnal basis of accounting and include the financial statements of Urban Pathways, Inc. and
all its affiliates as well as all limited partnerships in which Urban Pathways, Inc., through
affiliated entities, acts as general partner. All material inter-affiliate balances and transactions
have been eliminated in the consolidation.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. ‘

Caslt and cash equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments with
maturities, when acquired, of three months or less,

Participants’ accounts - Program participants’ personal funds are maintained in bank accounts

separate from operating accounts. Interest earned on participants® accounts is credited to their
accounts.

Investments - Tnvestments are stated at fair value. The Agency invests in various types of
investment securities. Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks such as
interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of
investment securities will occur in the near term, based on the markets’ fluctuations, and that
such changes could affect the amounts reported in the Agency’s financial statements.

~continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Grants and contributions receivable - Grants receivable are recorded based on contracts for
services provided. A receivable is a recorded when expenses incurred under the terms of the
contract exceed cash received. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected
within one year are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-adjusted interest
rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received. Amortization of the discounts
is included in contribution revenue, Conditional promises to give are not included as support
until the conditions are substantially met. The grants and contributions receivable as of June 30,
2013 are all expected to be collected within one year.

Client service fees receivable - Receivables are recorded for services rendered but unpaid.

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Bad debt expenses on client’s service fees receivable,
contributions, grants and other receivables are charged if the receivable is determined to be
uncollectible based on periodic review by management. Factors used to determine whether an
allowance should be recorded include the age of the receivable and a review of payments
subsequent to year end.

Funded reserves - In accordance with regulatory requirements, the Agency established funded
reserve accounts for building improvements.

Fixed assets - Fixed assets are recorded at cost. The Agency capitalizes all property and
equipment having a cost of $5,000 or more with an estimated useful life of greater than one
year. Depreciation and amortization are recorded on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 30 years
Building improvements 12 - 30 years
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years

~ Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight-line basis over the lesser of
the term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

Advances from government agencies - Advances from government agencies represent unspent
government grant monies that are available to be used in the future period.

~continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Limited partnerships - The Agency acts as the general partner in the limited partnerships in
which it owns interests. The Agency reflects the interests in such partnerships retained by the

investor limited partners based upon the terms of the respective partnership agreements (see
Note 6).

Unrestricted net assets - These are net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has
been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose.

Revenues from government grants and contracts - Revenues from government agencies are
recognized when earned. [Expense-based grants are recognized as allowable expenses are
incurred. Performance-based grants are recognized as milestones are achieved.

Contributions - Unconditional contributions, including promises to give cash and other assets,
are reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restriction.

Development fees - Development fees are recognized when earned. UPI charged affiliate
organizations fees for development services. Receivables are recorded for services rendered but
unpaid.

Client service fees - Client service fees are recorded based on the rates currently in effect with
Medicaid. Rates under certain reimbursement agreements are subject fo change based on
subsequent review by funding agencies. Accordingly, service agreement income as reported
does not include possible or estimated retroactive adjustments of rates and may be adjusted in
future periods as final settlements are determined. The Agency recognizes retroactive
adjustments in the period in which the new rate is approved. It is the opinion of management
that disallowances and adjustments, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial position of the Agency.

Rental income - Rental income is recorded on a monthly basis equal to amounts charged to
tenants based upon signed leases. There are no leases that extend beyond a year.

-continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Rent expense - The Agency leases space at various locations. All leases are operating leases
and are accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, Rent
expense is recognized on the first day of each month for the current month’s rent. Leases are
reflected on the straight-line basis. Deferred rent, when material, is recorded for the difference
between the fixed payment and rent expense.

In-kind contributions and expenses - In-kind contributions and expenses consist of professional
and consulting fees reported at fair value at the date the services are rendered..

Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Agency with
specific assistance programs, campaign solicitation, and various commitiee assignments. These
volunteer services have not been recognized in the financial statements, as they do not meet the
recognition criteria outlined above.

Functional allocation of expenses - The costs of providing services have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Summarized comparative information - The financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does
not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Agency’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012,
from which the information was derived.

Uncertainty in income taxes - The Agency has determined that there are no materjal uncertain
tax positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods ending
June 30, 2010 and subsequent remain subject to examination by applicable taxing authorities.

Subsequent events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 19, 2013, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

-continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Measurements establishes a framework for measuring fair value. The framework
provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.
Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Agency has the ability to access. Level 2 inputs to the
valuation methodology include:

* Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
» Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
» Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

» Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation ot other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Level 3 inputs to the valuation
methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. The asset or
liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs,

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair

value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2013 as compared to
those used at June 30, 2012,

Money market funds - Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual securities are traded.

Mutual funds - Valued at the net asset value (“NAV”) of shares held at year end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Agency believes
its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

~continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the assets at fair value as
of June 30, 2013:

Level 1
Investments
Money market funds $ 180,297
Mutual funds - domestic 81,006
Mutual funds - international 13,987
$__275290
NOTE 3 - FIXED ASSETS
Land $ 7,196,730
Buildings 34,116,104
Building improvements 2,981,726
Construction in progress 7,218,294
Furniture and equipment 973,956
Leasehold improvements 213,808
52,700,618
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (5.892.837)
$.46,807.781

-continued-



URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The Agency obtained financing to develop, construct and operate several housing projects. At
June 30, 2013, long-term debt consisted of the following:

Mortgage payable - Ivan Shapiro House (a) $ 2,555342
Mortgage payable - Hughes Avenue (b) 10,757,333
Capital advance - Astoria (c) 11,573,266
Mortgage payable ~ Hegeman (d) 1,542,212
Mortgage payable - Hegeman (e) ‘ 674,894
Mortgage payable - 902-904 Amsterdam Avenue (f) 4,282,145
Deutsche Bank loan (g) ' 75,000
Deutsche Bank loan (g) 25,000
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) (h) 710,586
Line of credit (i) .
Clinton (§) : 2.973.587
Total $_35,169.365

The Agency received four separate, but similarly structured grants from New York State (NYS)
to construct buildings that will be used to operate programs in accordance with the Agency’s
mission. The four sites are from programs at (a) Ivan Shapiro House in New York City, (b)

Hughes Avenue in the Bronx, NY, (¢) Astoria, Queens, NY and (f) 902-904 Amsterdam
premises.

According to the terms of the grants, NYS made, or has agreed to make, advance payments to
the Agency to pay for land, acquisition fees and building construction. The government funding
source that currently funds the program, New York State Office of Menial Health (OMH),
anticipates making transfers of funds as authorized under Mental Hygiene Law 41.38 for
repayment of this mortgage as part of its continuing annual contractual relationship. The loans
are strictly non-recourse in nature in that the payee will look solely to collateral given (the
building and land that it is situated on) as security for this indebtedness.

(2) Under the Ivan Shapiro House agreement, the obligation created a lien upon the real
property of the facility. On September 20, 2000, the Dormitory Authority of the State of
New York (DASNY) issued bonds and created a first mortgage on the facility. The total
initial amount of the mortgage, which included additional underwriting and administrative
costs, was $4,442,000. During the year ended June 30, 2013, OMH made payments on the

mortgage in the amount of $351,398, which included $198,446 of principal and $152,952 of
interest.

-continued-
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC, AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

(b} During 2007, the Agency received a capital advance of $10,156,885 for the Hughes Avenue,
Bronx, NY site for a community residence single room occupancy residential (CR-SRO)
facility. Upon completion of the facility, the Agency agrees to operate the newly
constructed 55-bed CR-SRO for seriously and persistently mentally ill individuals. The
capital advance shall bear no interest and is not required to be repaid so long as the housing
remains available for a period of thirty years. The agreement period ends on April 24, 2042.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the OMH grant was refinanced through the issuance
of tax-exempt bonds issued by the New York State Housing Finance Agency (HFA), which
held the proceeds in escrow until the project was completed and the cost certified to HFA.
HFA issued the tax-exempt bonds dated August 10, 2010 and released $11,050,000 of the -
proceeds on July 12, 2012 to repay the construction loan in full, as well as the carrying costs
during construction. The serial and term bonds are payable with interest at a rate ranging
from 1.7% to 4.875% per year, with a final maturity of May 1, 2042. During the year ended
June 30, 2013, the agency drew down an additional $893,115 on the loan. During the year
ended June 30, 2013, OMH made payments on the mortgage in the amount of $1,544,327,
which included $292,667 of principal and $1,251,660 of interest.

The Agency has a renewable five-year operating contract with OMH, in which OMH has
committed to provide the Agency with annual debt service support in an amount sufficient
to pay debt service on the applicable loan in addition to funding for supportive housing
services for individuals with psychiatric disabilities at a per-bed rate,

(c) The Agency received a capital advance in the amount of $12,019,183 to construct a 50-bed
CR-SRO for seriously and persistently mentally ill individuals in Astoria, Queens, NY.
This project is also eligible to receive low income housing tax credits, which the Agency
has syndicated in order to obtain additional funds required to complete construction. Under
the terms of the agreement with OMH to operate the facility for a period of thirty years,
OMH will make monthly advance payments of $64,484 to the Agency to pay for the
underlying tax exempt bonds used to finance the construction. The agreement period ends
on October 17, 2042. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the agency drew down an
additional $1,525,378 on the loan, During the year ended June 30, 2013, OMH made
payments on the mortgage in the amount of $1,055,453, which included $445,977 of
principal and $609,476 of interest.

-continued-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

(d) During 2009, the Agency borrowed $2,200,000 from M&T Bank to putchase and renovate a

building in Brooklyn to house 55 homeless adults as a safe haven facility. The loan,
together with interest at 6.75% per annum, is being amortized over 10 years; a balloon

payment of $841,687 is due on September 1, 2016. The loan is secured by the land and
building in Brooklyn.

(e) In addition, the Agency obtained $800,000 from the seller to complete the purchase by

®

issuing a second mortgage on the property to the seller, The loan, together with interest at
7.50% per annurm, is being amortized over 15 years; a balloon payment of $246,061 is due
on September 30, 2024,

The Agency received a loan of $8,012,789 from OMH for the renovation of its congregate
treatment residence located at 902-904 Amsterdam Avenue in New York, NY. Under the
terms of the loan, OMH will make monthly advance payments of principal and interest in
the amount of $21,614 to the Agency to pay for the renovation of the existing facility. Upon
completion of the facility, the Agency agrees to operate the newly constructed 55-bed CR-
SRO for seriously and persistently mentally ill individuals for a period of thirty years, As
part of the loan, OMH has certified that, at the completion of the construction, a tax-exempt
bond/mortgage will be created and OMH anticipates making transfers of funds as authorized
under Mental Hygiene Law for repayment of this mortgage as part of its continving annual
contractual relationship. It is intended that this loan will be strictly non-recourse in nature,
and the payee will look solely to collateral given (the building and land that it is situated on)
as security for this indebtedness. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the agency drew
down $3,096,453 on the loan. During the year ended June 30, 2013, OMH made payments

on the mortgage in the amount of $504,113, which included $205,855 of principal and
$293’258 of interest, The balance due on the loan was $4”)R’),145 at June 30, 2013

RIS AL naal alsa, PaLrS Gu v rai v VAde

(g) During 2011, the Agency received a $225,000 grant from Deutsche Bank Americas

Foundation to be disbursed to the Agency in three payments of $75,000 per year for three
years. Each annual payment is divided into a $50,000 grant and an unsecured, interest-free
$25,000 recoverable grant. The recoverable grant must be repaid in annual increments of
$25,000 beginning July 31, 2013 and continuing through July 31, 2015, or until the loan is
fully repaid. The balance due at June 30, 2013 is $75,000.

During 2013, the Agency received a' $225,000 grant from Deutsche Bank Americas
Foundation to be disbursed in the same manner as the one described above. During the
year, the Agency received $75,000, of which $25,000 was considered to be an unsecured,

interest-free recoverable grant at June 30, 2013. The balance due at June 30, 2013 was
$25,000.

~continued-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

(h) On August 18, 2010, the Agency obtained at $710,586 loan from the Federal Home Loan

)

Bank of New York in connection with the development of Hughes Avenue facility to be
located in the Bronx, NY. The loan is interest-free and is due in full 15 years from the date
of the issuance of the facility’s certificate of occupancy, which was April 24, 2012,

The Agency has an unsecured revolving line of credit with Mizuho Bank for a maximum
amount of $1,500,000, Interest is payable based on the lower of LIBOR, prime, or Federal
Funds plus 2%. The Agency had previously drawn down $900,000 in connection with its
permanent financing of the Hughes Avenue project to help pay for interest during
construction and was repaid in August 2012. Interest on the line of credit during 2013 was
$2,509, which was capitalized. The line of credit will expire in January 2014.

During 2012, the Agency received a loan amounting to $8,800,000 from NYC Department
of Housing Preservation and Development (HPD) to construct 80 units of supportive
housing to be located in Bronx, NY for persons of low income, not less than 60% of whom
shall be homeless individuals referred by NYC Department of Homeless Services. The
remainder of the funds required to complete construction of the project, expected to be
$12,546,454, will be obtained through the syndication of low income housing tax credits.
Upon completion of the facility, the Agency will agree to operate the new construction
project for seriously and persistently mentally ill individuals for a period of sixty years. As
of June 30, 2013, HPD has advanced a total of $2,973,587 for land acquisition and capital
expenditures. The loan is secured by the property in the Bronx. There will be no interest
charged on the loan until the construction is completed, once completed, interest will be
charged at a fixed rate of 3%.

Principal payments on these long-term debts for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2014 $ 1,171,818
2015 1,231,834
2016 1,295,167
2017 1,993,145
2018 _ 1,138,793
Thereafter 28.338.608

$_35,169,365

-continued-
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 5 - OCCUPANCY

The Agency leases administrative and programmatic space at three (3) sites and leases
apartments under its scattered site program for ninety-five (95) individual apartments. The
residential rooms are rented to residents of the program.

Below is a schedule of commitments for future rent:

Year Ending
June 30,
2014 $ 1,620,292
2015 959,818
2016 359,594
2017 348.828

Total $_3.288532

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The Agency has been named in various litigation claims in the normal course of its operations,
Management, after taking into consideration legal counsel’s evaluation, is of the opinion that
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Agency’s financial statements
Accordmgly, no loss provision has been made in the financial statements.

A 124y

“‘glum Audits

Government grants and contracts as well as the Medicaid program are subject to complex laws
and regulations, Noncompliance with such laws and regulations could result in fines, penalties
and exclusion from such programs. No such fines or penalties were imposed on the Agency.
The Agency is subject to audit, which may result in adjustments or disallowances. The amount
of disallowance, if any, cannot be determined. Therefore, no provision is made for these

potential liabilities. Management does not anticipate any material adjustments as a result of
these audits,

-continued-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

W53 HDFC

During 2008, Urban Pathways acquired a property located at 439 W. 53™ Street, New York, NY
for the benefit of a real estate developer who agreed to develop a low-income residential rental
project (the “Project™) at this location. The West 53 Street Housing Development Fund
Corporation (*“W53 HDFC”) was formed to hold title to the property and manage the Project,
which houses 13 adults eligible for supportive housing under a grant received by the New York
State Office of Mental Health. During 2008, Urban Pathways transferred the title of the land
and building to W53 HDFC.

Per terms of a declaration of interest and nominee agreement, Urban Pathways acknowledges
that its holding of the legal and record title is solely on behalf of, and as nominee for the
developer, which possesses all of the beneficial and equitable ownership of the premises,
including any increases in value and other appreciation. This other entity will be responsible for
all costs and expenses incurred in the acquisition of the premises, demolition, improvements,
preconstruction and financing.

The developer is solely responsible for any loans, mortgages and other liens and any note or
mortgage executed by the developer as attorney in fact for Urban Pathways or the HDFC shall
be nonrecourse in nature. It is expected that Urban Pathways will acquire full beneficial interest
in the Project at the end of 15 years.

As W53 HDFC has no equitable ownership of the property and had no other discerable
activity, these financial statements do not include any amounts related to W53 HDFC.

Limited Partnersiips

UPl is the sole owner or controlling member of the general partners which each own 0.01% of
their associated limited partnerships. These partnerships were formed to own individual
properties which are developed and managed to provide low-income housing, and UPI has
guaranteed certain obligations to the limited partners. Specifically, UPI has provided a

guarantee for tax credit compliance to fund operating deficits for a five-year period capped at
$1,590,000.

General Partner Limited Partnership
Hughes Houses, Inc. 1974 Hughes Ave., L.P,
Hallets Cove Urban GP, Inc. Hallets Cove LP
Amsterdam GP, Inc. Amsterdam Cluster House L.P.
1344 Clinton GP, Inc. 1344 Clinton Houses L.P
1351 Boston Road GP, Inc. 1351 Boston Road LP

~continued-
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Each of the limited partnerships has one general partner owned or controlled by UPI, which has
a 0.01% interest in the limited partnership. The remaining 99.99% interest in each of the
partnerships are owned by equity investors that are required to make capital contribution in
exchange for tax credits, operating losses and depreciation in proportion to their investments.

- The capital contributions are used for operating and capital expenditures or to fund reserves of
the respective partnership.

The required capital contributions and the amount contributed from inception of the respective
partnership are as follows: ‘

Required Contributions

Contributions to Date Balance
1974 Yughes Ave., L.P. $ 4,743,601 § 4,743,601
Hallets Cove LP 4,309,569 2,984,348 § 1,325,221
Amsterdam Cluster House L.P. 3,438,310 464,016 2,974,294
1344 Clinton Houses LP 12,546,454 500,000 12,046,454
1351 Boston Road LP 6.119371 6,119.371
Totals $.31.157.305 $_ 8,691,965 $_22.46534Q

NOTE 7 - GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

Government grants and confracts revenue for the year ended June 30, 2013, received by the
Agency from various federal, New York State and city government agencies, consisted of the

following:

NYC Department of Homeless Services $ 5,459,797
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 665,852
NYS Office of Mental Health 6,971,842
NYC Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 546,907
NYS Department of Hunger Prevention and Nutrition 124,678
Port Authority of New York and New Jersey 174,610
Other government agencies 285,939

Total $. 14220625

-continued-
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 8 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

Ivan Shapiro House - capital addjtions/operations $ 398,887
Olivieri drop-in program 5,050
Outreach 34,585
Housing development 89.502

$__528,024

During 2013, temporarily restricted net assets were released from resirictions for the following:

Outreach B 89,407
Housing development ' 173,789
$.__263,196

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The Agency has a tax-sheltered annuity plan under IRS section 403(b) wherein all employees
are eligible to contribute pre-tax amounts up to IRS maximum limits. The Agency also has a
401(k) profit-sharing plan for employees with at least 1,000 hours of service during the fiscal
year. The Agency contributes a designated percentage of eligible employee salaries. The
expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $258,746.

. N JEg

COMpensation plau covening a seiect group of
managerial and highly compensated employees. The Executive 457(b) Retirement Plan is an
unqualified plan and provides eligible employees an opportunity to defer compensation in
excess of qualified retirement plan benefit on a pre-tax basis. The deferred salary liability is
informally financed through the use of mutual funds included in the Agency’s investment
portfolio and which are at a risk of creditors. At June 30, 2013, the value of the mutual funds
and the amount of the deferred liability was $113,393.

During 2009, the Agency established a deferred compensation

-continued-
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URBAN PATHWAYS, INC. AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2013

NOTE 10 - CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Agency to a concentration of credit risk are
cash accounts with financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits.

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 12, 2013, 1351 Boston Road Housing Development Corporation, an affiliate,
completed syndication of low income housing tax credits and obtained permanent financing of
$5,375,000 from NYC Department of Housing Preservation and Development for the
acquisition and development of a 43-apartment building to be located in Bronx, NY. It is
expected that the tax credit syndication will generate approximately $6,000,000 to be used in the
development of the project,

On August 14, 2013, East 162 Housing Development Fund Corporation, another affiliate, closed
on a loan from the Corporation for Supportive Housing amounting to $2,175,000 to acquire a
parcel of land located in Bronx, NY and other development costs in connection with a property
it intends to develop once permanent financing is obtained. The loan, which bears interest at
6.25% per annum is due the earlier of closing of construction financing or December 31,2014,
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ATTACHMENT 7

ADDENDA




THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT
2 MONTGOMERY STREET, 3®° FL.
JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302

1/6/2014

ADDENDUM # 1

To prospective Proposer(s) on RFP # 35907for HOMELESS OUTREACH AND
REFERRAL SERVICES AT PORT AUTHORITY BUS TERMINAL (PABT),
NEW YORK SIDE OF THE LINCOLN TUNNEL (LT), PARKING LOTS,
PARKING GARAGES, AND SURROUNDING FACILITY AREAS

Due back on 1/14/2014, no later than 2:00PM
I. CHANGES/MODIFICATIONS

The following changes/modifications are hereby made to the solicitation documents:
A. Inthe RFP section Attachment B Part I- Standard Contract Terms and Conditions for
Facility Services Page 26, Section 3, “Duration”, paragrapha:

Delete:

a. The term of this Contract shall be for a three (3) year period (the "Base Term™)
commencing on or about May 1, 2014 at 12:01 a.m. ( “the Commencement Date”) and
unless sooner terminated or revoked or extended as provided in Paragraph (b) and (c)
herein, shall expire on or about May 15, 2017 at 11:59 o’clock p.m. ( “Expiration Date”).

and replace with the following:

a. The term of this Contract shall be for a three (3) year period (the "Base Term")
commencing on or about September 1, 2014 at 12:01 a.m. ( “the Commencement Date”)
and unless sooner terminated or revoked or extended as provided in Paragraph (b) and (c)
herein, shall expire on or about August 31, 2017 at 11:59 o’clock p.m. (“Expiration
Date™).

II. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The following information is available in response to questions submitted by prospective
Proposers. The responses should not be deemed to answer all questions, which have been
submitted by Proposers to the Port Authority. It addresses only those questions, which
the Port Authority has deemed to require additional information and/or clarification. The
fact that information has not been supplied with respect to any questions asked by a
Proposer does not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any
meaning, construction, or implication with respect to the terms.

PS11Al
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The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the
information contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information
accurately represents the conditions that would be encountered during the performance of
the Contract. The furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not create or
be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and
each Proposer, by submitting its Proposal, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the
foregoing information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible
therefor in any manner whatsoever. Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no
representation, statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers,
agents, representatives, or employees, oral or in writing, shall impair or limit the effect of
the warranties of the Proposer required by this RFP or Contract and the Proposer agrees
that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefor in any manner
whatsoever.

The Questions and Answers numbering sequence will be continued séquentially in any
forthcoming Addenda that may be issued.

Question #1 | Will the Port Authority be providing the office space for this
program?

Answer #1 In the RFP section Attachment B Part I- Standard Contract Terms
and Conditions for Facility Services Page 42, Section 15, “Materials,
Supplies and Equipment”, paragraph one, line 6, as stated “Office
space shall be provided by the Port Authority for the duration of the
Contract at no cost to the Contractor, which will include office

furniture only.”

Question #2 | If o, is there a rent fee for the space and what is the monthly
amount?

Answer #2 See answer #1

Question #3 | For the rapid response, is that included with the origina] budget or is
it a separate billing process?

Answer #3 Rapid response is a separate billing process

Question #4 | Would it be acceptable to identify the 30T Street Shelter for the
mandatory 10 beds?

Answer #4 As long as it is in the New York Shelter System as per the RFP.

Question #5 | Would we be penalized if for some reason we were not fully staffed
at all times?

Answer #5 In order to honor the Port Authority contract the successfiil proposer
must be fully staffed as required within the RFP.

Question#6 | Regarding the 3 positions, (Management Representative, Program
Monitor & Social Service Case Worker) is that for each shift since it
1S a 24 hour service?
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Answer #6
This is not a 24-hour operation. Please refer to Cost Proposal Form
for hours of operation for each position. Part I - Cost Proposal
Form, “Labor Costs for Mobile Outreach Team Member. Provide
homeless outreach, transportation and referral services sixteen (16)
hours per day, 365 days per year. Hours of work are 6:00 am —2:00
pm and 3:00 pm — 11:00 pm.”

Question #7 | Should we bill the cost of the 10 beds into the budget that we are
required to maintain as per the RFP?

Answer #7 See Part II — Cost Proposal Form, Section II. Monthly
Management Fee, “The Management Fee shall be full
compensation for the cost of the Management Representative, and
general confract management and supervision, including but not
limited to access to beds, home office expenses, overhead, profit,
equipment not furnished by Port Authority, all other expenses in
connection with the performance of this Contract, whether or not
presently foreseen or foreseeable, other than those charges
specifically included above. Please note that the overhead rate
shall not include any charges included in Part Il above.”

Question #8 | Can you be more specific about what you mean in Section 2v (page
17), “Set forth a method of identifying and distinguishing the
services provided at PABT/LT”?

Answer #8 All reports must clearly identify, with specificity, where the
homeless client was located at PABT/LT, for example, Jane/John
Doe, PABT, near the 400 Gates was found sleeping in the doorway.

Question #9 | Please provide additional guidance for completing Part IT — Cost
Proposal Form on page 46. The PS portion of the form is structured
with each line representing one position. If each position was one
employee working 2,920 estimated hours per year, that would be a
seven day workweek and also doesn’t allow for coverage for paid
leave days (sick, vacation, etc.). How do we show that more than one
employee will be represented in the 2,920 hours and accompanying

hourly rate on each line?

Answer #9 In the RFP Part II Cost Proposal Form, “Labor Costs for Mobile
Outreach Team Member. Provide homeless outreach, transportation
and referral services sixteen (16) hours per day, 365 days per year.
Hours of work are 6:00 am —2:00 pm and 3:00 pm — 11:00 pm.”
During hours of operation one Program Monitor and one SS Worker
is required.

Question #10 | Also regarding Part IT — Cost Proposal Form, if we wanted to add
additional staffing such as psychiatric hours, where should we show
those expenses?

Answer #10 | All proposer’s must submit a proposal based on the staff
requirements within the body of the RFP and any additional
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services shall be billed under, Part II — Cost Proposal Form,
Section II. Monthly Management F ee, “The Management Fee
shall be full compensation for the cost of the ‘Management
Representative, and general contract management and
supervision, including but not limited to access to beds, home
office expenses, overhead, profit, equipment not furnished by Port
Authority, all other expenses in connection with the performance
of this Contract, whether or not presently foreseen or foreseeable,
other than those charges specifically included above. Please note
that the overhead rate shall not include any charges included in
Part II above.”

This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your Proposal upon
submission. '

In case any Proposer fails to conform to these instructions, its Proposal will nevertheless
be construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed.

THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ
KATHY LESLIE-WHELAN,

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR
COMMODITIES AND SERVICES DIVISION

PROPOSER'S FIRM NAME:

V=N (PW I
INITIALED: \_ L ~)

DATE: &///??//61

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO
LESLEY BROWN, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (201) 395-3469 or at
Ibrown@panynj.gov.
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